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REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS 
FOR 

LOTTERY OPERATIONS AND SERYICES 
RESPONSES TO PROPOSERS' Q UESTIONS 

Note to All Prospective Proposers: 

The following responses include questions raised and answers provided during the pre
proposal conferences held on January 20, 20 10, and February 2, 20 I 0, and questions 
submitted in wri ting by the required deadli ne for the first round of written questions. 
In its answers to the fo llowing questions, the Texas Lottery has attempted to provide both 
accurate and thorough responses. Some of these answers may clarify or modify the RFP, 
and every Prospective Proposer is on notice of each answer's content. Answers that 
modify the RFP are so noted. Answers app ly only to the facts as presented in each 
specific question. 

Some questions raise issues the Texas Lottery bel ieves are more appropriately addressed 
during the contract negotiation stage of this sol icitation process and, in these instances, 
the Texas Lottery has declined to respond. 

The Texas Lottery reviewed all questions submitted by the deadli ne, but declines to 
respond to some questions when the Texas Lottery believes providing the infonnation 
would impair competition or otherwise hann the interests of the Texas Lottery. For 
example, the Texas Lottery may deny a proposer's request for specific and proprietary 
infonnation about a program or strategy devised by the current Lottery Operator when 
the Texas Lottery believes such infonnation represents only one poss ible solution to a 
problem and the sharing of such infonnation would discourage innovation and lessen 
competition. 

Some questions may state a proposition with which the Texas Lottery disagrees. The 
fail ure of the Texas Lottery to contradict the statement or otherwise respond to the 
question does not indicate agreement with the statement. 

In some cases, the Texas Lottery is providing responses to questions which reflect current 
business operations. The Texas Lottery is looking for innovative thinking and solutions. 
Unless otherwise specified in the RFP, Proposers may offer solutions that vary from the 
current practice that they believe will further the Texas Lottery' s vision, mission and core 
values. 

Proposers should review all sections of the RFP along with this document to ensure a 
complete understanding o rlhe requi rements. Any exceptions to the RFP should be noted 
in the Proposal, as required under Section 2. 12 of the RFP. 
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PRE-PROPOSAL CONFERENCE OUESTIONS AND RESPONSES
JANUARY 20, 2010 

A. Would the Lottery consider changing the importance of pricing to a more acceptable 
level of 30 to 40 percent, which has been seen in previous Lottery RFPs? 

Response: Cost was given a specific weight not in order to favor any 
particular vendor or class of vendors, but instead to properly and accurately 
communicate the importance to the Texas Lottery of a secure, reliable and 
robust solution . The Texas Lottery is not willing to trade its commitment to 
security and reliability in exchange for a bargain-basement price. At the same 
time, the Lottery is open to the possibility that numerous vendors are capable 
of providing a system that meets the Texas Lottery standards for security and 
reliability as long as the vendor makes a sufficient commitment to that goal. 
The RFP as drafted asked vendors to make that commitment and gives them 
the freedom to assign the necessary resources to fulfill that commitment. 

B. How was the weighting of the pricing scheme arrived upon? Was this something that 
the Lottery itse lf decided upon or was th is someth ing that the Lottery working 
alongside the Gartner Group came up with? 

Response: In the development and review of the RFP (including the scoring 
matrix), the Texas Lottery senior management team had the assistance of in
house attorneys, outside counsel, the Attorney General's Office, and the 
Comptroller of Public Accounts, in addition to Gartner. The senior 
management team made all of the final decisions regarding what type of 
scoring methodology would be used and the weight given to the technical and 
cost components of the RFP. 

C. In Section 7.12 , the Player Activated Sales Tenninal, it talks about allowing for a 
debit card, who would be responsible for paying that fee for the debit card 
transaction? Would that be the player, the systems provider, or the Lottery? 

Response: In an effort to position the agency for the future, the Texas Lottery 
is requesting services in this RFP that are not currently offered today. Among 
those services are debit card transactions. With regard to the fees and how 
they may be handled, that is something that the Texas Lottery would look to 
work with the Successful Proposer to evaluate and determine the best course 
of action and be positioned with regard to those technologies for the future. 

PRE-PROPOSAL CONFE RENCE QUESTIONS AND RESPONSES -
FEBRUARY 2, 2010 

D. Is it only one person from my firm that needs to go to the mandatory HSP workshop? 
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Response: Proposers can have as many attendees as they would like. The 
Texas Lottery encourages the person who will be completing the HSP, as well 
as anyone who might be involved in putting the proposal together, attend the 
mandatory HSP workshop. 

E. Does the main point of contact need to attend? 

Response: That is encouraged . 

F. Section 8.7 regarding market ing materials, there is a reference to instant ticket 
dispensers. Please provide the specifications for those displays as well as estimated 
quantities. 

Response: Information regarding estimated quantities of instant ticket 
dispensers at Texas Lottery retail locations was provided to pre-proposal 
attendees who signed non-disclosure statements on February 2, 2010, via e
mail. 

Specifications for instant ticket dispensers can be obtained from Schafer 
Systems, Inc. 

G. Do you anticipate growth; and ifso, what in direction wide? 

Response : The Texas Lottery optimistically anticipates growth. One of the 
things emphasized both in the RFP and day-to-day operations is recru itment 
activities and expansion into new retail trade styles and environments , as well 
as existing trade styles. 

H. Do you have a sector of retail ers that you feel you have not penetrated to a level that 
you should go to? In which directi on do you think the growth will go? 

Response : The area that the Texas Lottery would most like to see expansion , 
and this is an industry challenge, is into big box retail. Primari ly in Texas now, 
our footprint is in convenience stores, grocery stores, liquor stores. It is a 
pretty narrow slice of the entire retail environment that exists today. The 
Texas Lottery believes there is a place for lottery in big box retail and we are 
looking to actively pursue those types of opportunities. Part of the challenge 
of that is working with those retail establishments to ensure that they 
understand that we make sense in their business environment. 

I. Table No. 65 , bu ll et po int No.5 , wou ld the Lottery consider turn ing that specified 
option into an invited option? As a speci fied option, the proposer must offer an 
automated in-counter ticket dispenser. 

Response: Please see the response for question #84 . 
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WRITTEN OUESTIONS R ECEIVED BY FEBRUARY 9. 2010 @ 4:00 
P.M. 

I. Is there a Program Manager for this project ami if so could you provide conlad 
infonnation? 

Response: If you are asking for a point of contact for the RFP, please 
refer to Section 2.1. The Lottery wi ll assign pOints of contact to the 
Successful Proposer after Contract Award. 

2. How much money has the Texas Lottery Commission allotted for th is program? 

Response: Please refer to Section 1.2 and Attachment K of the RFP. The 
estimated value of the initial term of the Contract is $728,869,347. 

3. We respectfully request that the Texas Lottery Commission please provide a 
li sting orall Texas Online Retailers as soon as possible to all vendors interested in 
responding to the Rr-'P. 

Whi le we are preparing our questions for submission per the RFP schedule, we 
believe the infonnation regarding the current retailer base is a cornerstone to 
assembling a comprehensive and well developed plan and proposal. The 
geographic disbursement of retai lers impacts nearly every aspect of logistic 
planning including facilities, telecommunications, tenninal installations, and 
fie ld and sales support organizations to name a few .... 

The RFP has done an exceptional job providing in fonnation in many key aspects 
of the Texas Lottery Commission 's business in order to fac ilitate comprehensive 
and responsive vendor proposals. However, this area of pertinent detai l is 
miss ing .... 

We respectfully request that the Texas Lottery Commission provide a li sting of 
all Texas Lottery Retailers in an electronic file fonnat such as Excel - including 
reta il er name, location address, city, and z ip code, location phone number, SIC 
or business type, and whether the retailer sells all lottery products or just a sub
set of them. 

Response: Information was provided to pre-proposal attendees who 
signed non-disclosure statements on February 2, via e-mail. 

4. Section 1.9 : Proposa ls Subject to Texas Public Information Act. and 2.8.4. page 
numbers 5. 11- 12. Could the Lottery please con finn that, besides marking 
"Confidential" on each page or by each paragraph containing such information, a 
Proposer may set forth its "specific and detailed reasons fo r each item marked 
'Confidential, '" in a separate table to accompany its proposal, as its response to 
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Section 1.9? Also, could the Lottery please confirm that it will not disclose any 
Confidential information provided in a Proposer's response to Section 1.9, unless 
directed to do so by the Attorney General or a court of competent jurisdiction? 

Response: Proposers may include a separate table in response to 
Section 1.9, in addition to marking 'Confidential ' on each page or by each 
paragraph containing such information. Please refer to Section 1.9 
regarding requests for confidential information (" ... The Texas Lottery will 
notify a Proposer if all or part of its Proposal is requested under the Act. 
Failure of a Proposer to respond to such notification may result in the 
release of all or part of the Proposal as public information. It is the 
Proposer's obligation to submit briefing to the Attorney General setting 
forth the basis upon which the requested information should remain 
confidentiaL .. ."). 

5. Section 2.10. Protest/Litigation Bond. Page 13. Would the Lottery be willing to 
accept a Letter of Credit as an alternative form of security for the Litigation 
Bond? 

Response: The Texas Lottery will accept an Irrevocable Letter of Credit 
that complies with all the requirements in Section 2.10 of the RFP. 

6. Section 3.9.4 Performance Specifications and 3.60.63 Fai lure to Cooperate Fu ll y 
and in Good Faith in the Conversion to any New System. Page 21. RFP Section 
3.9.4 states that the TLC "will withhold ten percent (10%) of all weekly payments 
due the last year of any Contract resulting from this RFP," and "may withhold an 
addi tional fifteen percent (15%) of weekly payments during the last year of any 
Contract resulting from th is RFP, if the Successful Proposer fails to fu ll y and 
completely perform its duties during any trans ition to another vendor." 

We would like to respectfu ll y note that these terms contrast with the current 
Contract, which provides only for a discretionary TLC withhold limi ted to five 
percent (5%) of weekly payments. Any withhold will reduce the value to the 
Contractor of compensation earned during the period of withholding, in addition 
(0 causing an added financia l burden to the Successful Proposer, as expenses and 
spending increase dramat ically during a conversion. As such, a Hold Back 
would inevitably cause each Proposer to account for such a reduction in its Price 
Proposa l. 

Response: The Texas Lottery disagrees with the stated proposition and 
believes the Hold Back is reasonable and necessary to avoid 
interruption/degradation in services during the transition between 
vendors. 
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Also, Section 3.60.63 ca lls for liquidated damages in the amount of $500,000 per 
week (pro rata per day) in the event the Successful Proposer fails to cooperate 
full y and in good faith during a convers ion to a new system. The same section 
sets forth certain specific duties that the Successful Proposer must complete as 
part of its good fa ith duty to cooperate. Due (0 the fact that the Lottery has a 
remedy available under Sect ion 3.60.63, and the sanction set forth in Section 
3.60.63 is intended to compensate the Lottery for any damages it suffers as a 
result of the Successfu l Proposer's failures, would the Lottery please consider 
deleting the Hold Back requirement set forth in Section 3.9.4, as it serves to 
compensate the Lottery twice for the same fa ilure by the Successful Proposer? 

Using the same rationale, in the event the Lottery is unwilling to delete the Hold 
Back provision, would the Lottery please consider deleting the sanction for 
failu re to cooperate during a conversion, as set forth in Section 3.60.63? 
In the event the Lottery is unwi lling to de lete either the Hold Back or the 
sanctions set forth in Section 3.60.63, would the Lottery then consider amending 
Section 3.9.4 so that the Lottery shall only Hold Back 10% in the event the 
Successful Proposer fails to complete any of the duties set forth in Section 
3.60.63 or other such convers ion dut ies as mutually agreed to by the Parties? 

In addition , would the Lottery consider revising RFP Section 3.94 by adding a 
tenn obligating the Lottery to pay interest to the Contractor at the State of Texas' 
legal rate on any amount withheld for the period of withhold ing? 

The Lottery states that the Hold Back amount will be paid as soon as reasonably 
possible following successful completion of duties under the Contract, but no 
sooner than thirty (30) days thereafter. "Services will not be considered complete 
until transition to another vendor is successful" . Successful conversion to a new 
vendor may never be complete, or may be sign ificantly delayed, due to factors 
that are outside of the Successful Proposer's control. The Lottery has 
contemplated a scenario under which the new vendor's fai lures render 
conversion impracti cal or impossible by retaining the right to extend for up to 
two years (an "emergency extension") during the 90-day state of readiness 
period. We respectfully assert that withholding compensation from the 
Successful Proposer when a failure to convert to a new system is the result of a 
third party act is a penalty against the wrong party. Therefore, should the Lottery 
retain its right to Hold Back 10% during the last year of the Contract, would the 
Lottery please amend the RFP so that the Hold Back funds will be immediatel y 
returned to the Successful Vendor upon completion of its conversion duties, as 
set forth in Section 3.60.63, regardless of whether or not a conversion to a new 
system is complete? 

In the alternative, would the Lottery please amend the RFP so that the Hold Back 
funds will be returned to the Successful Proposer immediately upon the Lottery 
notifying the Successful Proposer that it must resume its role as operator of the 
system pursuant to an emergency ex tension, as contemplated by Section 3. 15.4? 
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The Lottery states that, at its sole discretion, it may withhold an additional 15% 
of weekly payments during the last year of any Contract if the Successful 
Proposer fails to "full y and completely perfonn its duties during any transition to 
another vendor." Once the Lottery has determined that a "successful transition" 
to another vendor has been completed, the Lottery will return the Hold Back to 
the Successful Proposer. 

Will the Lottery please continn that it will not withhold an additional 15% of 
weekly payments when the cause(s) of any failure by the Successful Proposer to 
perfonn its duties duri ng any transition to another vendor is the result of third 
party acts or other circumstances that are outside of the Successful Proposer's 
control? 

Response: The Texas Lottery declines to modify or amend the RFP. The 
Hold Back only applies to the incumbent at the end of the Contract and is 
intended to ensure cooperation during conversion , while sanctions are for 
failure to perform during the Contract period. 

7. Section 3.9.4 Perfonnance Specifications Page 21. The Lottery states that it 
shall only return the Hold Back ifit detennines that the Successful Proposer has 
fu lly and completely perfonned "aU of its duties under a Contract" resulting 
from this RFP and the Lottery detennines that the successful transition to another 
vendor has been completed. 

Since the Lottery has other remedies under this RFP to redress a Successful 
Proposer's fail ure to fu lly and completely perfonn its duties under a contract not 
related to a successful transition, would the Lottery please amend the fourth 
sentence of Section 3.9.4 to read as fo llows: 

"In the event thai the Successflll Proposerflilly and completely pet/arms all of its 
dulies durillg (Iny tr(lllsition to allother vendor, and the Texas LOlfery 
determines that the sliccess/ultransition to another vendor has been completed, 
then, upon such completion, the Texas LOllelY shall pay the Hold Back to the 
Success/ul Proposer. " 

Response: The Texas Lottery has reviewed this question and declines to 
modify or amend the RFP. 

R. Section 3.9.4, Perfonnance Specifications, Page 21. For ordinary accounting 
purposes, a vendor must have an estimated date range for when it can close its 
books and recognize revenue for any tiscal period. RFP Section 3.9.4 sets the 
earliest, but not the latest, date when the Lottery will retwn any Hold Back funds 
to the Successful Proposer. Therefore, would the Lottery please consider 
amending this section of the RFP as follows: 
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"The Hold Back amount will be paid as soon as is reasonably possible following 
successful completion of duties under any Contract resultingfrom Ihis RFP, but 
no sooner Ihan Ihirty (30) Days from successfid complelion 0/ duties and IlO 
later than ninety (90) days from the dllte of SlIch sliccess/ili completion. " 

Response : Please refer to Section 3.9.1 and Texas Government Code 
Ann . § 2251 et. seq. for payment requirements . 

9. Section 3.15.4. State of Read iness. Page 24. RFP Section 3. 15.4 authorizes the 
LoUery to require the Successrul Proposer to resume its role as the operator o rthe 
Lottery Gaming System for up to two (2) add itional years at any time during the 
ninety (90)-day state of readiness period. The resources needed to operate the 
Texas Lottery gaming system require a Successful Proposer to perform 
operational analyses well in advance or any such two-year extension in order to 
ensure that it allocates appropriate staffing levels and makes other necessary 
preparations to continue to meet the Successful Proposer's duties under the 
Contract over the extended period. 

So as to provide the Successful Proposer with adequate notice of a two (2)-year 
extension pursuant to RFP Section 3. 15.4, would the Lottery please consider 
amending this section by substituting the following sentence for the sentence that 
begins "AI any lime during the ninety (90) Day period. " . 

"Provided wrillennolice is given to the Successful Proposer no later Ihan sixty 
(60) days a./ier the beginning a/the ninety (90) Day period or such shorter 
period as may be mUlually agreed upon by Ihe parlies, the Texas LollelY may 
require the Successful Proposer to resume its role as the operator 0/ the LOllery 
Gaming Syslem for lip to two (2) additional years. " 

Could the Lottery please confirm its intention, consistent with the language of 
RFP Section 3.15.3 governing other extensions of the Contract term, that if the 
Lottery requires the Successful Proposer, under RFP Section 3. 15.4, to resume 
its role as operator of the Lottery Gaming System for up to two (2) additional 
years, such extension shall be at a mutually agreed upon rate? 

Response: Please see Amendment No. 5. The Successful Proposer shall 
be entitled to compensation during the renewal period at the then-current 
contract rate , but only for transactions processed by the Successful 
Proposer's System. 

10. Section 3.17. Termination for Cause, Page 25-26. This provision allows the 
Lottery to terminate the Contract for cause "upon no less than five (5) Days 
notice" if, among other reasons, Uri) The Successfi" Proposerfails to comply wilh 
any of the terms, conditions or provisions of the Contract, in any manner 
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whatsoever." As written, these tenns raise several concerns. Fi rst, entering into 
an agreement that allows the Lottery unfettered discretion for tennination greatly 
increases the risk to a Successful Proposer. This risk may impact the Proposer' s 
ability to obtain certain bonding and insurance and may force the bidder to 
account for this ri sk in its Price Proposal. Additionally, the right to tenninate is 
not conditioned on a perfonnance fa ilure being material , and, the notice period 
may fall short of a reasonable time to cure a perfonnance failure. 

Could the Lottery please confi nn that the minimum notice period preceding a 
tennination for cause for any of the reasons stated in this section will not be less 
than the minimum period reasonably needed to cure a "condition" as defined in 
the ten ( 10) subsections of RFP Section 3.17? Also, would the l ottery please 
amend this section by adding the word "material" after "any" in the quoted text 
of subsection (i) above? 

Response: The Texas Lottery has reviewed this question and declines to 
answer the question and to modify or amend the RFP. 

11. Section 3.20. No Liab il ity Upon Tennination. Page 27. This section states in 
relevant part that "If any Con/rac/ entered ;'1/0 as a result of this RFP is 
terminatedfor any reason, the Texas LOllelY and the State of Texas shall not he 
liable to the Successful Proposer for any damages, losses, financial obligations, 
breach of contracl, or any olher claims or amounts arising from or relaled 10 any 
such termination. " 

Absent a compensation provision that appropriately recognizes the major capital 
investment required to design, manufac ture or purchase component parts as 
needed, and implement the Lottery Gaming System, the Successful Proposer 
would be at significant economic risk, especially during the earl y years of the 
Contract, should the Lottery elect to tenninate the Contract at Will , pursuant to 
RFP Section 3. 16, as its signi ficant capi tal investment will not have been 
recovered through sales through the Successful Proposer's tenninals. 

Since the Successful Proposer's Base System and Services compensation wi ll be 
based on the agreed-upon "percentage of Sales processed by the Successful 
Proposer's LOllelY Gaming System" pursuant to RFP Attachment H (Cost 
Proposal) rather than on separately established payments fo r deliverables, we 
respectfu lly request that the Lottery modify RFP Section 3.20 by adding a 
provision that would obligate the lottery in the event of a tenninalion to 
compensate the Contractor for its previously uncompensated labor, materials and 
equipment costs incurred in perfonning the Contract prior to the effective date of 
such tennination, plus a fa ir and reasonable pro fi t on such costs. 

Response: The Texas lottery has reviewed this question and declines to 
modify or amend the RFP. 
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12. Section 3.21. Effect ofTem ination, item d, Page 27. As drafted, Section 3.2 I(d), 
requires the Successful Proposer to surrender all documents and materials related 
to the Works. Could the Lottery please confinn that the documents and materials 
required to be surrendered under this subsection are limi ted to those that were 
furnished by the Texas Lottery or first originated under the Contract, created 
exclusively for the Texas Lottery pursuant to the Contract, and are unique to and 
were paid for by the Texas Lottery? 

Response: "Works" are defined as "[alny tangible or intangible items or 
things that have been or wi ll be prepared , created , maintained , serviced or 
developed by a Successful Proposer (or such third parties as the 
Successful Proposer may be permitted to engage) at any time following 
the effective date of the Contract. for or on behalf of TLC under the 
Contract" (emphasis added). 

Section 3.21 (d) of the RFP states that "[tlhis section shall apply to all 
materials made or compiled by the Successful Proposer, as well as to all 
materials furnished to the Successful Proposer by the Texas Lottery or by 
anyone else that pertain to the Works." 

Therefore, anything prepared , created, maintained, serviced or developed 
for or on behalf of the Texas Lottery by the Successful Proposer after the 
effective date of the Contract, and anything pertaining to the Works 
provided to the Successful Proposer, shall be returned to the Texas 
Lottery. 

13. Section 3.21. Effect ofT ermination, items a, and e, Page 27. Sect ions 3.2 1 (a) 
and (e) have no time limit with reference to the rights that would be granted to the 
Texas Lottery in the event of termination or expiration of the Contract. Could the 
Texas Lottery please confirm that the rights granted under subsections 3.21 (a) 
and (e) are limited to the period that the Texas Lottery continues to operate the 
lottery or unti l a third party assumes responsibility for running the Lottery on 
behalf of the Texas Lottery, and that the Texas Lottery does not have a perpetual 
right to the permiss ions, li censes Or SOurce code provided under the Contract? 

Response: Section 3.25.1 regarding ownership states that "the Works 
and Intellectual Property Rights in the Works are and shall be owned 
exclusively by the Texas Lottery, and not the Successful Proposer. The 
Successful Proposer specifically agrees that all Works shall be considered 
'works made for hire' and that the Works shall, upon creation, be owned 
exclusively by the Texas Lottery. To the extent that the Works, under 
applicable law, may not be considered works made for hire, the 
Successful Proposer hereby agrees that the Contract resulting from this 
RFP transfers. grants. conveys. assigns. and relinquishes 
exclusively to the Texas Lottery all right. t itle and interest in and to 
the Works, and all Intellectual Property Rights in the Works, without the 
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necessity of any further consideration , and the Texas Lottery shall be 
entitled to obtain and hold in its own name all Intellectual Property Rights 
in and to the Works .... " 

Section 3.25.3 regarding ownership of prior rights states that "[a]1I property 
... created , developed or owned by the Successful Proposer prior to the 
issuance of th is RFP shall continue to be exclusively owned by the 
Successful Proposer, and the Texas Lottery shall have no ownership 
thereof, and no rights thereto, other than the limited. non-exclusive 
right to use such property or tangible or intangible items solely for the 
purposes set forth in this RFP or resulting Contract , if any. All intellectual 
property relating to the goods andlor services set forth herein or 
under the Contract. including the Intellectual Property Rights in 
those goods andlor services , that was created , developed or licensed 
by the Successful Proposer prior to the issuance of this RFP or the 
execution of the Contract, or during the term of the Contract , to the extent 
such intellectual property is not considered Works as defined above, shall 
be. and is. licensed to the Texas Lottery on a nonexclusive. 
perpetual, irrevocable, royalty-free, worldwide basis. to allow the 
Texas Lottery or its designees to provide, and continue to provide. 
the goods and services set forth herein or under t he Contract. 
including after the expiration or termination of the Contract" 
(emphasis added). 

The foregoing assumes that the Texas Lottery is an ongoing entity 
charged with the responsibi lity for administering lottery goods and services 
in the State of Texas . If the Texas Lottery ceased to exist, and no other 
governmental agency took its place to administer such lottery goods or 
services, the licenses to Successful Proposer's property would also cease. 

14. Section 3.2 1, Effect of Tennination. item e, Page 27. As drafted, Section 3.2 1.e 
of the RFP requires that, i f the Contract is tenn inated fo r cause by the Texas 
Lottery, the Texas Lottery shall be enti tled to rece ive deli very of the source code 
for all of the software necessary for operation of the Lottery Gaming System from 
the source code escrow established pursuant to the requirements contained in this 
Contract. It is consistently the case with other U.S. lotteries that a lottery may 
only access source code and proprietary materials from a th ird-party escrow agent 
in the event the Successful Proposer can no longer operate the system due to a 
specific set of circumstances. 

In the event that the Texas Lottery does obtain access to the Successful Proposer's 
source code or proprietary materials, could the Texas Lottery please confinn that 
it will not disclose the source code and/or proprietary materi als to third parties, 
except for those subcontractors and thi rd parties required to operate the Lottery 
Gaming System, and that, prior to any disclosure of the Successful Proposer's 
source code or proprietary materials to such subcontractors and third part'ies, the 
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Texas Lottery will require subcontractors and third parties to enter into a non
disclosure and restriction on use agreement with the Successful Proposer that is 
deemed sufficient by the Successful Proposer? 

Further, in the event the Successful Proposer is subsequently able to perfonn its 
obligations to the Lottery. could you please confinn that the Lottery shall be 
ob ligated to return the source code and proprietary materials to the escrow agent, 
unless the escrow agreement is tcnninated and, in such case, to the Successful 
Proposer. 

Response: Please see the response to question #13. Any disclosure of 
the proprietary materials referred to in this question would be to such 
parties necessary for operating the Lottery Gaming System. 
Nondisclosure agreements would likely be necessary prior to such 
disdosure. 

The final part of this question regarding "subsequently able to perform its 
obligations" is ambiguous, and therefore cannot be answered . 

15. Section 3.22.9, Apparent. Prize Value of Misprinted On-Line Tickets, and 3.33.1. 
Indemnification Provisions Page 2R. Section 3.22.9 states that the Successful 
Proposer warrants and agrees to pay the apparent prize value of misprinted On
Line Tickets that do not validate as winners. The same provision express ly states 
that altered tickets are not misprinted tickets. There are a number of unintended 
consequences that may result from the enforcement of such a provision. First, 
with regard to misprinted ti ckets, the Texas Lottery Commission's Lottery Game 
Rules, Rule 401 .304, expressly states that the liability for a void ticket is limited 
to a refund of the sales price of a ticket or a replacement ticket. To quote from the 
Rule, "Liabi lity for vo id tickets, if any, limited to replacement of ticket or refund 
of sa les price. " See T AC 40 1.304(e)(3). Per T AC 401.30 I (58), a " Void ticket" 
includes "any ticket that is ... printed or produced in error," whi le any " Invalid 
ticket" is one "that fai ls to meet all va lidation requirements of the commission." 

By requiring the Successful Proposer to pay the apparent prize value of a 
misprinted, invalid ticket, the Lottery is attempting to legally obligate the 
Successful Proposer to pay damages that the Lottery itselfis not legally obligated 
to pay and, as such, may resu lt in a legally unenforceable penalty. Moreover, by 
allowing a player with an inva lid or void ticket to cla im an apparent prize despite 
applicable Lottery rules disallowing such benefit, the Lottery would be changing 
standard industry practices and past rules and procedures. The enforcement of this 
requirement involving a misprinted ticket for a multi-jurisdiction game could 
bankrupt the Successful Proposer's bus iness by forcing it to be responsible for a 
jackpot amount that exceeds its ability to pay. 

Additionally, Section 3.33.1 of the RFP states that the Successful Proposer shall 
indemnify the Lottery against any and all claims, demands, causes of action, 
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li abi li ties, lawsuits, losses, damages, costs, expenses and attorneys' fees which 
may be incurred by any actual or alleged act or omission of the Successful 
Proposer. This broad indemnification provis ion would fu lly protect the Lottery in 
the event the Lottery were required to pay a judgment to a player that resulted 
from a dispute over a misprinted, void and invalid ticket. 

The ri sk associated with this provis ion is likely to be uninsurable in the customary 
commercial insurance markcts and would requ ire a specialized policy that would 
take months to investigate and would likely be cost prohibitive. The Successful 
Proposer's Cost Proposa l would necessarily be affected by this risk. 

As to the issue of altered tickets, over the years, it has become well established 
that altered tickets cannot be validated by the system and therefore prizes are not 
paid. Given the sophistication with which some thieves approach altering tickets, 
in many cases, the distinction between a misprinted ticket and an altered ticket 
may be difficult to detennine, and in some cases impossible. The Lottery's 
current ru le that prohibits payment on an invalid ticket acts as a deterrent to 
prevent misguided individuals from attempting to alter tickets. 

By establishing a requirement that allows for prize payments on misprinted tickets 
that the system cannot validate, the Lottery is lowering the standard for those 
persons that may attempt to alter a ticket, while at the same time offering a new 
incentive for thieves to alter the ticket so that it looks like a misprint, as opposed 
to a va lid winner. [n so doing, the Lottery may unwittingly be inviting a new 
wave of altered tickets . 

Would the Lottery please continn that a "misprinted ticket" as the lenn is used in 
this Section, is a "ticket printed or produced in error" and therefore within the 
definition of a Void Ticket as set fo rth in Texas Administrative Code, § 
401.30 1 (58)? 

Based on the foregoing, we respectfully request that the Lottery el iminate Section 
3.22.9. 

Response: Please see Amendment NO. 6. 

16. Section 3.25. 1, Ownership, Page 30. As drafted, Section 3.25. 1 of the RFP 
requires that Works and Intellectual Property Rights ("IPR") in the "Works" shall 
be owned exclusively by the Texas Lottery. As the Texas Lottery will recognize, 
"Works" may be created from "whole cloth" (i.e., as a completely new idea). or 
created based upon some pre-existing IPR of the Texas Lottery or Successful 
Proposer. As the Texas Lottery will also recognize, "Works" constitute an 
essential core asset, regardless of whether or not they are created by the Texas 
Loltt::ry or the Successful Proposer, and regard less of whether or nol the Works 
are created internally from "whole cloth" or created based upon the Texas 
Lonery's or Successful Proposer's pre-existing [PRo Finally, the Texas Lottery 
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will also recognize that it is essential to corporate vitality and continued success 
for both the Texas Lottery and Successfu l Proposer to preserve its essential core 
assets. 

In view of the foregoing, would the Texas Lottery please confirm that "Works," 
as defi ned in the Glossary of Terms of the RFP and as used throughout the RFP, 
only includes items that first originated under the Contract (Le., "whole cloth"), 
were created exclusive ly for the Texas Lonery pursuant to the Contract, arc 
unique to the Texas Lottery and were paid for by the Texas Lottery? 

Response: "Works" are defined as "[a)ny tangible or intangible items or 
th ings that have been or wi ll be prepared , created, maintained , serviced or 
developed by a Successful Proposer (or such third parties as the 
Successful Proposer may be permitted to engage) at any time following 
the effective date of the Contract, for or on behalf of TLC under the 
Contract" (emphasis added). TLC believes that this definition requires no 
further explanation. 

17. Sect ion 3.25.3, Ownership of Prior Rights by the Successful Proposer. Page 31. 
As drafted, Section 3.25.3 of the RFP states that all property created by the 
Successful Proposer prior to issuance of the RFP shall continue to be exclus ively 
owned by the Successful Proposer. Could the Texas Lottery please confirm that 
all intellectual property created after the issuance of the RFP and prior to the 
execution of any Contract resulting from the RFP is also included in Section 
3.25.3 and shall continue to be owned exclusively by the Successful Proposer? 

Response: Section 3.25.3 regarding ownership of prior rights states that 
"[a)1I property ... created , developed or owned by the Successfu l Proposer 
prior to the issuance of this RFP shall continue to be exclusively owned by 
the Successful Proposer .. . All intellectual property relating to the goods 
andlor services set forth herein or under the Contract , including the 
Intellectual Property Rights in those goods andlor services, that was 
created , developed or licensed by the Successful Proposer prior to the 
issuance of this RFP or the execution of the Contract, or during the term of 
the Contract , to the extent such intellectual property is not considered 
Works as defined above, shall be , and is, licensed to the Texas Lottery on 
a nonexclusive, perpetual , irrevocable, royalty-free , worldwide basis, to 
allow the Texas Lottery or its designees to provide, and continue to 
provide , the goods and services set forth herein or under the Contract, 
including after the expiration or termination of the Contract" (emphasis 
added). 

''Works'' are defined as "[a)ny tangible or intangible items or things that 
have been or will be prepared , created , maintained , serviced or developed 
by a Successful Proposer (or such third parties as the Successful 
Proposer may be permitted to engage) at any time following the 
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effect ive date of the Cont ract. for or on behalf of TLC under the 
Contract" (emphasis added). TLC believes that this definition requires no 
further explanation . 

Please see Amendment No. 7, Section 3.25.3 is amended to read , in 
relevant part, as follows: 

" .. . All tangible or intangible i tems relating to the goods and/or services 
set forth herein or under the Contract, including the Intellectual Property 
Rights in those tangible or intangible items, that were created , 
developed or licensed by the Successful Proposer prior to the issuance of 
this RFP or the execution of the Contract , or during the term of the 
Contract, to the extent such tangible or intangible items are ... " 

Therefore, any tangible or intangible items, or intellectual property therein , 
created by the Successful Proposer after the issuance of the RFP and 
prior to the effective date of the Contract would not be considered "Works" 
(unless included as such by subsequent agreement of the parties). 
However, any such items that relate to the goods and services provided 
for in the Contract are licensed to the Texas Lottery as set forth in the RFP 
in order for the Texas Lottery to continue providing its lottery services. 

Additiona lly, could the Texas Lottery please con finn the following: 

(i) Its right to use the intellectual property relating to the goods and services set 
forth in the RFP or resulti ng Contract shall be subject to the Inte ll ectual 
Property Rights held by the Successfu l Proposer (<<Successful Proposer 
lnlt: l1ecLual Property") or applicable third parties. 

Response: Section 3.25.3 (as amended) indicates that "All tangible or 
intangible items relating to the goods andlor services set forth herein or 
under the Contract, including the Intellectual Property Rights in those 
tangible or intangible items, that were created, developed or licensed by 
the Successful Proposer prior to the issuance of this RFP or the execution 
of the Contract, or during the term of the Contract, to the extent such 
tangible or intangible items are not considered Works as defined 
above, shall be, and are, licensed to the Texas Lottery on a nonexclusive, 
perpetual, irrevocable, royalty-free , worldwide basis, to allow the Texas 
Lottery or its designees to provide, and continue to provide, the goods and 
services set forth herein or under the Contract, including after the 
expiration or termination of the Contract" (emphasis added). 

Therefore, the foregoing section indicates the terms by which such 
tangible or intangible items, which are not considered "Works" under the 
Contract, are licensed to the Texas Lottery. 

(i i) Any grant of a li cense to the Texas Lottery to make use of Successfu l 
Proposer Intellectual Property or the Intellectual Property Rights of third 
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parties will be granted solely for use during the tenn of the Contract, and any 
extensions thereof. 

Response: Please see the response to question #17 and 17(i). 

(iii) Any grant ofa license to the Texas Lottery to make use of Successful 
Proposer Intellectual Property or the Intellecwal Property Rights of third 
parties will be granted solely for use in Texas. 

Response: Please see the response to question #17 and 17(i). 

(iv) Any grant of license to the Texas Lottery to make use of Successful Proposer 
Intellectual Property or the Intellectual Property Rights of third parties shall 
not include the right to subl icense. 

Response: Please see the response to question #17 and 17(i). 

(v) That the Texas Lottery's right to creative derivative works from Successful 
Proposer Intellectual Property or the Intellectual Property Rights of third 
parties shall be limited only to modifying and/or creating works reasonably 
contemplated by the Texas Lottery and Successful Proposer under 
the Contract. 

Response: This question is vague and ambiguous, and therefore cannot 
be answered. 

18. Section 3.25.6. Confidentiality. Page 32. Section 3.25.6 of the RFP relates to the 
Successful Proposer 's obligation of non-disclosure and restriction on use of the 
Works and the Texas Lottery infonnation. Could the Texas Lottery please 
confinn that the obligations and restrictions of this section do not apply to 
infonnation that: 

(i) Is or becomes published or othen."ise publicly available. 

(ii) Was already known to the Successful Proposer at the time of disclosure as 
evidenced by documents mainta ined in the ordinary course of business. 

(iii) Was independently deve loped by the Successful Proposer without reference 
to the Confidential lnformation. 

(iv) Was lawfully obtained from a third party without breach of any agreement 
between the third party and the Texas Loltery. 

Response: With regards to Section 3.25.6 , the items noted above are 
consistent with the requirements of the RFP. 
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19. Section 3.26, Pre-Existing and Third Party Rights, Page 32. As drafted, Section 
3.26. 1 of the RFP requires the Successful Proposer to license to the Texas Lottery 
any of its pre-existing rights or third party rights that are resetved, reflected or 
embodied in the Works. As the Texas Lottery will recognize, the lntellectual 
Property Rights ("IPR") of any party remain valuable as an essential core asset to 
the extent that they are minimall y encumbered and thus, freely licensable. 

To that end, could the Texas Lottery please confirm that the term of any license to 
the Texas Lottery for any pre-existing IPR, or for any [PR arising under this 
Contract, will inure to the benefit of the Successful Proposer, be limited to the 
term of the Contract, and any extensions thereof, and be solely for the purpose of 
carrying out the Works of any Successful Proposer IPR that may ari se and be 
licensed to the Texas Lottery during those time periods? 

Response: Section 3.26.1 states that "[t]o the extent that any pre-existing 
rights and/or third party rights or limitations are embodied , reserved or 
refiected in the Works, the Successful Proposer shall either (a) grant to 
the Texas Lottery the irrevocable. perpetual. non-cxclusive. 
worldwide, royalty-free right and license to (i) use, execute, reproduce, 
display, perform , distribute copies of, and prepare derivative works based 
upon such pre-existing rights and any derivative works thereof and (ii) 
authorize others to do any or all of the foregoing , or (b) where the 
obtaining of worldwide rights is not reasonably practical or feasible, 
provide written not ice to the Texas Lottery of such pre-existing or third 
party rights or limitations, reguest the Texas Lottery's approval of such 
pre-existing or third party rights, obtain a limited right and license to use 
such pre-existing or third party rights on such terms as may be reasonably 
negotiated, and obtain the Texas Lottery's written approval of such 
pre-existing or third party rights and the limited use of same" (emphasis 
added). 

The Texas Lottery believes that the foregoing subparagraph adequately 
explains the options available in the event that pre-existing rights or third 
party rights/limitations are included in the Works, and that no further 
explanation is needed. 

20. Section 3.28. Intellectual Prooertv Search. Page 33. Will the Texas Lottery please 
confirm that the Successful Proposer shall not be responsible to indemnify, defend 
or hold the Texas Lottery harmless from any claim or allegation of infringement if 
a Work is developed by the Texas Lonery, or i f the Texas Lottery instructs the 
Successful Proposer to proceed with a Work despite the results of any search 
conducted or any recommendation against such use provided by Successful 
Proposer? 
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Response: Section 3.26.1 states, in relevant part, that "[t]he Successful 
Proposer shall indemnify , defend and hold the Texas Lottery harmless 
from and against any and all claims , demands, regulatory proceedings 
andlor causes of action, and all losses, damages, and costs (including 
attorneys' fees and settlement costs) arising from or relating to, directly or 
indirectly, any claim or assertion by any third party that the Works infringe 
any third party rights. The foregoing indemnity obligation shall not 
apply to instances in which the Texas Lottery either (y) exceeded the 
scope of the limited license that was previously obtained by the 
Successful Proposer and agreed to by the Texas Lottery, or (z) obtained 
information or materials, independent of the Successful Proposer's 
involvement or creation, and provided such information or materials to the 
Successful Proposer for inclusion in the Works, and such information or 
materials were included by the Successful Proposer, in an unaltered and 
unmodified fashion, in the Works." 

2 1. Section 3.33, Indemnification. Page 35-36. RFP Section 3.33.1 slates that the 
Successful Proposer shall indemnify the Lndemnified Parties from "attorney's 
fees." Will the Lottery please revise Section 3.33.1 to add "reasonable" before 
"attorney's fees?" 

RFP 3.33.2 allows the Lndernnified Parties, upon giving notice to the Successful 
Proposer, "in good faith to pay, settle or compromise, or litigate any Claim under 
the belief that the Claim is well-founded, whether it is or not, without the consent 
or approval of the Successful Proposer." However, the RFP omits a provision 
offering the Successful Proposer important protection against such unilateral 
settlements, spec ificall y authorizing sett lement "unless the [Successful Proposer] 
protests in writing and, simultaneously with such protest deposits with the 
lndemnified Part ies collateral satisfactory to the lndenmified Parties sufficient to 
pay and satisfy such claim and any penalty or interest which may accrue as a 
result of such protest, on such claim, demand, loss, liability, cost, charge, 
attorney's fee, or judgments as may result". Would the Lottery please consider 
revising this Section by adding the above-quoted text beginning with the 
highlighted word "unless?" 

Response: The Texas Lottery has reviewed this question and declines to 
modify or amend the RFP. 

22. Section 3.36. Perfonnance Bond. Section 3.36.2 and Attachment F. Page 37 and 
233. The bond fonn provided in Attachment F states that the bond can be 
renewed on an annual basis. Would the Lottery be willing to amend Section 
3.36.2 of the RFP to state that the Perfonnance Bond can be renewed on an 
annual basis? 
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Response : The RFP does not prohibit the renewal of performance bonds 
on an annual basis. 

23. Sect ion 3.36, Perfonnance Bond. Section 3.36.2 and Attachment F. Page 37 and 
233. In accordance with the current Contract, we respectfully request that the 
Lottery amend Section 3.36.2 of the RFP as follows: 
;'However, the Surely's non-renewal oj said bond shall not be considered grounds 

for a claim againsl said bond. " 

Also, we respectfu lly request that the following language be added to the fourth 
paragraph of the Sample Perfonnance Bond: 

"Such notification, by itself, shall not constitule a breach or default by __ _ 
under the Contrael between and the Texas LOllery referred to 
hereinabove. " 

Response: The Texas Lottery has reviewed this question and declines to 
modify or amend the RFP. 

24. Sect ion 3.36, Perfonnance Bond. Page 37. Would the Lottery be willing to 
consider reducing the amount of the Performance Bond to its current level of 
$20,OOO,OOO? 

Response: The Texas Lottery has reviewed this question and declines to 
modify or amend the RFP. 

25. Section 3.36 Performance Bond Page 37. Would the Lottery be willing to accept 
a Letter of Credit as an alternative form of security in lieu of a Performance 
Bond? 

Response : No. Texas Government Code Sec. 466.102 states: "A 
contract for the acquisition or provision of facilities , supplies, equipment, 
materials, or services related to the operation of the lottery must provide 
for liquidated damages and a performance bond in an amount equal to the 
executive director's best available estimate of the revenue that would be 
lost if the contractor fails to meet deadlines specified in the contract. " 

26. Section 3.36. Performance Bond and Section 3.36.2. Page 37. Sureties prohibit 
forfeiture language from being included in the bond fonn or contract. The Surety 
requires an opportunity to "cure the default" in lieu of strict forfeiture. Therefore, 
we respectfully request tbat the Lottery delete the last sentence in Section 3.36.2 , 
which states: 
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'The bond shaff befOlfeired to the Texas LOllery if/he Successful Proposerfails 
to perform as required by the Contract, pay sanctions or Iiquidaled damages, or 
indemnify {he Texas Lollery. " 

And replace it with the following: 

"If the Successful Proposer defaults in Ihe performance of ils contractual 
obligalions, or if Ihe LOl/elY incurs damages due to the Successful Proposer's 
breach of its dUlies, the Surety shaff have the oplion 10 cure Ihe default or lender 
funds sufjicientlo pay Ihe cost of complelion, up 10 an amounl nollo exceed the 
penal Slim of the bond. With the concurrence of the LOllefY, the Surety may 
assume {he remainder of the Contracllo pel/arm or sublel. " 

Response: The Texas Lottery has reviewed this question and declines to 
modify or amend the RFP. 

27. Section 3.37. General Liability Insurance, Page 37. Typically, insurance policies 
are wri tten on a Combined Single Limit (CSL) basis in lieu of Split limits. Would 
the Lottery be will ing to accept evidence of $4,000,000 CSL for Bodily Injury 
and Property Damage per occurrence/aggregate written on a Commercial General 
Liability fonn in lieu of the Split limits indicated in the RFP? This can be 
evidenced by a Commercial General Liability policy followed by an Umbrella 
(Excess) policy. 

Response: Yes, the Texas Lottery will accept a $4,000,000 Combined 
Single Limit (CSL) for Bodily Injury and Property Damage per 
occurrence/aggregate written on a Commercial General Liability policy 
with an Umbrella or Excess policy, as long as the Umbrella/Excess policy 
follows the General Liability form. Coverage must include 
products/completed operations and personal/advertising injury. 

28. Section 3.37. General Liability Insurance and Attachment F. Page 37. Would the 
Lottery be willing to accept an industry-standard bond fonn in lieu of the Sample 
Perfonnance Bond included in Attachment F? 

Response: No. 

Alternatively, general liability limits are written as a policy aggregate. If, for 
example, the Successful Proposer carries $10,000,000 in limits, the per-location 
loss limit would be $ 10,000,000. However, the total of all general liability losses 
cannot exceed the aggregate limit of $ 1 0,000,000, as evidenced by a Commercial 
General Liability policy followed by an Umbrella (Excess) policy. 

Would the Lottery be willing to accept evidence of $10,000,000 Combined Single 
Limit (CSL) for Bodi ly Injury and Property Damage per occurrence/aggregate 
and remove the last sentence, which states: 
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';Policy shall be endorsed to include the Amendment of Aggregate Limits per 
location" 

Response : The Texas Lottery has reviewed this question and declines to 
modify or amend the RFP. 

29. SectIOn 3.41. Automobile Llabilltv. Page 38 Would the Lottery be willing to 
accept evidence of $4,000,000 Combined Single Limit for Bodily Injury and 
Property Damage in lieu of the Split limits outlined in Section 3.41? 

Response: The Texas Lottery will accept evidence of a $4,000 ,000 
Combined Single Limit for Bodily Injury and Property Damage in lieu of the 
split limits outlined . 

30. Section 3.44, Disclosure of Sanctions and Liquidated Damages, and Section 4.2.5, 
Perfonnance During Last Five Years, Pages 39-40. The Lottery has requested that 
Proposers include a complete list of all sanctions and liquidated damages (LDs) 
assessed against the Proposer during the last fi ve (5) years prior to submiss ion of 
the Proposal. Would the Lottery please consider limiting the requirement to 
provide data on LDs and sanctions to "materia l" LOs and sanctions, with 
"material" defined for thi s purpose to be those sanctions and LOs in excess of 
$1 00,000 paid by a Proposer, e ither in cash or in goods/services or in any 
combination thereof to any customer of a Proposer during any twelve ( 12)-month 
period during the five (5) years preceding submission of the Proposal? 

Response: Please see Amendment NO.8. The Proposer must include in 
its Proposal a list of all sanctions and liquidated damages assessed 
against the Proposer during the last five (5) years prior to submission of 
the Proposal for the following: (i) a single sanction able event under any 
contract, regardless of dollar amount, that occurred five (5) times or more 
in a rolling calendar year, or (ii) any sanction or liquidated damage 
assessment under any contract totaling fifty thousand dollars ($50,000) or 
more. 

Regarding the continuing disclosure requirement stated in Section 3.44 , cou ld the 
Lottery please confinn that such disclosures are required within fifteen ( 15) days 
of settlement or payment of any such sanction or liquidated damages amount? 

Response: The Texas Lottery clarifies "occurrence" to mean notification 
within fifteen (15) days of assessment, settlement or payment, whichever 
is first. 

Regarding the same continuing disclosure requirement, would the Lottery 
consider limiting the required disclosures to a Proposer's payment(s) of liquidated 
damages or sanctions in excess of $ 1 OO,OOO? 
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Response: Please see response above and Amendment No.8. 

Further, could the Lottery please confinn that updates regarding sanctions and 
liquidated damages shall be sent to Ange la Zgabay-Zgarba at the Lottery 
headquarters? 

Response: Yes. All updates regarding sanctions and liquidated damages 
shall be sent to Angela Zgabay-Zgarba . 

This vendor's internal document retent ion policies do not require that it keep 
detailed descriptions of goods/services that have been provided in lieu of an LD 
assessment or in lieu of cash. In all instances, however, this vendor maintains a 
record of the value of all goods and services provided in lieu ofa cash payment 
relative to an LD assessment. Could the Lottery please con finn that, in the event 
a record does not ex ist that describes the goods/services provided in lieu ofa cash 
payment of LOs, the Lottery will accept infonnaLion as to the value of the 
goods/services provided, rather than a description of the goods/services 
themselves? 

Response: The Texas Lottery will accept information as to the value of 
the goods/services provided . 

3 1. Section 3.58.4. Delivery of Copies of Works. Page 45. Section 3.58.4 of the RFP 
requires that, where Works include computer software, the Successful Proposer 
sha ll deli ver to the Texas Lottery copies of source code as well as object code of 
such software, and entity relationship diagrams, in addition to techn ical 
documentation sufficient for an average programmer to understand, modify, 
compi le and execute the software. 

As the Successful Proposer will manage and ensure the successful implementation 
of all aspects of the Lottery Gaming System and any services to be provided 
therewith, as the Texas Lottery will not be responsible for the implementation of 
the Lottery Gaming System, and as the Texas Lottery wi ll have access to such 
information, if needed, under the escrow provisions of Section 3.58.5, would the 
Texas Lottery consider amending Section 3.58.4 to exclude the requirement that 
the Successful Proposer deliver to the Texas Lottery copies of source code, object 
code, entity relationship diagrams, or any technical documentation related to any 
Works that the Successful Proposer may deliver to the Texas Lottery? 

Altemat ively, would the Texas Lottery li mit Section 3.58.4 to require that the 
Successful Proposer only produce the source code and object code related to 
Works that inc lude computer software? 
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Response: The Texas Lottery has reviewed this question and declines to 
amend the scope of delivery requested in Section 3.58.4 absent additional 
explanation as to why the delivery requirements should be narrowed. 

32. Section 3.58.5. Source Code Escrow Agreement. Page 45. Could the Lottery 
please confinll that the Successful Proposer shall de li ver copies of all Works to an 
independent escrow agent in lieu of providing such materials di rectl y to the 
Lottery, as is currentl y provided in Section 3.58.4? 

Response : The Texas Lottery does not have enough information to 
respond . 

33. Section 3.59, Lotterv Purchase Options, Page 46 Could the Texas Lottery 
confinn that the Successful Proposer is not required to provide to the Texas 
Lottery broader ri ghts than those the Successful Proposer has rece ived from any 
third party? 

Response: The Texas Lottery has reviewed this question and declines to 
answer. 

34. 3.60, Sanctions and Remedies Schedule. Page 46. We recognize that the Lottery 
is entitled to obtain its bargained for performance under the forthcoming Contract 
and that Section 2261.101 (a) of the Texas Government Code requires the Lottery 
to incorporate into the Contract "a remedies schedule, a graduated sanctions 
schedule, or both, for breach of the contract or substandard peliormance under 
the contract." In establishing liquidated sums of sanctions in RFP 3.60, is it the 
Lottery's purpose to provide an inducement to the Contractor to perform its 
obligations, and to do so in a ti mely fashion? Ifnot, is inducing the Contractor to 
perfo rm, and to do so on time, one of the Lottery's purposes in establishing 
liquidated sums of sanctions in RFP 3.60? 

Response: The Texas Lottery has reviewed the question and declines to 
answer. 

35. Section 3.60, Sanctions and Remedies Schedule. Page 46. Section 2261(b) 
requires that the Lottery "design fair and feas ible standards that will hold 
contractors accountable for breach of contract or substandard peljormance 
under a contract withollt diminishing rhe number of able providers who are 
willing to contract with the stale." The RFP does not state that the sanctions 
desc ribed in RFP Section 3.60 meet this requirement. Is it the Lottery's position 
that each of the 60 sanctions included in RF P Section 3.60 represents a "fair and 
feas ible standard?" If so, could the Lottery please describe, fo r each sanction 
specified in RFP 3.60.6 through 3.60.65, how it detennined that each is fa ir and 
feas ible? 
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Response: The Texas Lottery has reviewed the question and declines to 
answer. 

36. Section 3.60. Sanctions and Remedies Schedule. Page 46. RFP Section 3.6 1.2(a) 
states that "If the Successful Proposer does nOI provide or pelform the 
requiremellls referred 10 or listed in Ihis RFP or fulfill the obligaaons of the 
Contrael, damage 10 fhe Texas Lottery will reslIlt," RFP 3.60 conta ins no similar 
statement. In fact, based on this Proposer's experience in operating state lotteries, 
it is likely that many incidents covered by the sanctions terms ofRFP 3.60 will , 
due to immateriality or short duration or both, cause the Lottery no damages. Is it 
the Lottery's position that all performance fa ilures subject to sanctions under RFP 
Section 3.60 will result in damages to the I.ouery? For each performance failure 
speci fied in RFP 3.60.6 through 3.60.65, could the Lottery please explain how it 
has determined that such fa ilure will cause damages to the Lottery? 

Response: The Texas Lottery has reviewed the question and declines to 
answer. 

37. Section 3.60. Sanctions and Remedies Schedule. and Section 3.61. Liqu idated 
Damages. Page 46 and 84. RFP Section 3.61.2(b) through (d) states, with respect 
to the four (4) categori es of perfonnance fai lures ineluded in this section, that 
"establ ishing the precise measure of damages ... may be ... (iii) di ffi cult to 
estimate;"; that "liquidated damages assessments contained herein represent a 
good fa ith effort to quantify the damages that could reasonably be ant ic ipated at 
the time of execution of the Contraet"j and that "the damages set forth herein are 
just and reasonable." Similar statements to those in RFP 3.61.2(b) through (d) are 
not included in RFP 3.60. 

Could the Lottery please explain why it has not ineluded such statements in Rf'p 
Section 3.60 regarding the 64 categories of sanctions specified in that Section? Is 
it the Lottery'S position that the damages resulting from each of the performance 
fai lures described in RFP Section 3.60 are difficult or impossible to estimate? 
Could the Lottery please explain how it determined for each category of sanctions 
speci fied in RFP Sections 3.60.6 through 3.60.65 that the damages are difficult or 
impossible to estimate? Is it the Lottery's pos ition that it has estimated the 
amounts of damages it would incur fo r each of the performance failures described 
in RFP 3.60.6 through 3.60.65 and that each such amount is just and reasonable? 

Could the Lottery please explain, for each category of performance fa ilures 
described in RFP Section 3.60.5 through 3.60.65 (i), how it developed (e.g., 
fac tors andlor formulas relied on in developing) an estimate of the damages it 
would suffer as a resu lt of each such incident; and (ii ) how it determined, for each 
category of sanctions speci fied in RFP Sections 3.60.6 through 3.60.65, that the 
amount of damages indicated represents a just and reasonable fo recast o f such 
damages? Also, has the Lottery documented the bases for its reasonable forecasts 
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of the amounts necessary to render just compensation for each of the damage 
categories in RFP Section 3.60? If so, could the Lottery please supply Proposers 
with the record of that documentation? 

Does the Lottery agree that the damages, if any, to be assessed for each of the 
perfonnance failures covered in RFP Section 3.60.5 through 3.60.65 must 
approx imate (i. e. , not exceed) its actual damages incurred, as measured as of the 
time of the pcrfonnance failure? Ifnot, could the Lottery please explain its 
position/intention with regard to the potential assessment of damages exceeding 
its actual damages incurred for perfonnance fa ilures described in RFP Sections 
3.60.6 through 3.60.65? 

Would the Lottery be willing to agree not to assess sanctions that are 
disproportionate to its actual damages, as measured at the time of a breach for 
each orthe categories of sanctions included in RFP Section 3.60? Also, would the 
Lottery agree to assess sanctions that are less than the liquidated sums stated in 
RFP Section 3.60 when fac tual evidence is provided to the Lottery showing that 
the Lottery's actual damages are less than the liquidated sums? 

Response: The Texas Lottery has reviewed these questions and declines 
to answer the question and to mOdify or amend the RFP. 

38. Section 3.60, Sanctions and Remedies Schedule. Page 46. It is well established, 
particularly with mature lotteries, that a calculation of actual damages can be 
achieved with relat ive ease. Many state lotteries in recent years have recognized 
that contractual tenns setting fixed sanctions/LOs may often overstate the 
damages lotteries actually incur for perfonnance failures and, to avoid issues and 
disputes involving the potential unenforceability of such tenns as illegal penalties, 
have agreed to tenns that (i) allow the Contractor to submit evidence of the 
lottery's actua l damages resu lting from any incident subject to sanctions, (i i) 
require the lottery to fairly consider such evidence in detennining the amount of 
any such damages assessment, and (iii) establish each fixed sanction as a 
"maximum" assessable damage. 

Would the Lottery agree to adding these tenns in substance to the Contract to be 
awarded as a result of th is procurement? 

Response: The Texas Lottery has reviewed the question and declines to 
answer. 

39. Sect ion 3.60. Sanct ions and Remedies Schedule. Page 46. It is obviously 
important for both parties 10 the forthcoming Contract to have a shared 
understanding of the intended interpretation of all Contract tenns so as to avoid 
potential disputes. We understand that there is no distinction in the legal 
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requirements for detennining whether or not the sanctions and liquidated damages 
tenns specified in RFP Sections 3.60 and 3.6 1 are valid and enforceable. 

Does the Lottery intend for the validity and enforceability of sanctions under RFP 
3.60 to be subject to any different legal standard than that for liquidated damages 
under RFP Section 3.6 1? Ifso, will the Lottery please identify and explain each 
such difference? Could the Lottery please explain its intent in separately 
providing for sanctions in RFP Section 3.60 and liquidated damages in RFP 
Section 3.61 rather than combining those tenns in a single Section of the RFP? 

Response: The Texas Lottery has reviewed this question and declines to 
answer. 

40. Section 3.60. Sanctions and Remedies Schedule. Page 46. Various sanctions 
under RFP Section 3.60 are set at the same fixed sum whether the duration of the 
perfonnanc.e failure is one day, or on ly part of one day; e.g., 3.60.6, 3.60.7, and 
3.60.8. Would the Lottery agree to modify those sanctions that are presently the 
same whether the duration of the delay is one day or less than one day such that 
the stated amount in each instance will be the maximum assessable sum for each 
day of delay, with that maximum sum to be appropriately prorated for partial days 
of delay? 

Response: The Texas Lottery has reviewed this question and declines to 
modify or amend the RFP. 

41. Section 3.60. Sanctions and Remedies Schedule: - 3.60.8. 3.60.11 .3 .60.23. 
3.60.26.3.60.27.3.60.28.3.60.32.3.60.37.3.60.40. 3.60.42. 3.60.43. 3.60.46. 
3.60.51. 3.60.58. Page 46. The referenced categories of sanctions in RFP 3.60 
exceed, in some cases dramat ically, those sanctions for like categories in the 
current Contract. Is it the Lottery's position that its anticipated damages for each 
of these categories wi ll exceed the damages it antic ipated for the like categories 
under the current Contract? If so, could the Lottery please explain how it 
detennined for each such category that, and what, increased damages are 
anticipated? 

Response: The Texas Lottery has reviewed this question and declines to 
answer. 

42. Section 3.60.34, Failure to Implement Change or Release Management Without 
Incident Page 64. RFP 3.60.34 states that sanctions in the amount of $25,000 per 
incident may be assessed in the event the Successful Proposer fails to implement 
any change or re lease to the Lottery Gaming System without an "incident." Could 
the Lottery please explain what it means by the lenn "incident" as used in this 
section? 
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A failure to implement any change or release to the Lottery Gaming System 
wi thout incident would only resu lt in potential damages to the Lottery if such 
incident impacted ticket sales. Would the Lottery agree that sanctions would be 
assessed only ifany such inc ident results in a loss of ticket sales? Ifan incident 
involving a change or release to the Lottery Gaming System impacts ticket sa les, 
there is at least one other provision of RFP Section 3.60 under which the Lottery 
cou ld assess sanctions; i.e. , RFP 3.6 1.5, On-Line Game Unava il ab ility. 
Accordingly, would the Lottery be willing to delete RFP Section 3.60.34 from the 
RFP? 

Response: Please see Amendment No. 11 . 

43. Section 3.60.52. Retailer Satisfacti on. Page 75. RFP Section 3.60.52 specifies a 
sanct ion ofS I 00,000 for a Successfu l Proposer's ufa ilure to meet its retailer 
satisfacti on target as required in Section 8.4. 1 or as set by the Texas Lottery." 

Although RFP Section 8.4. 1 contains numerous perfonnance requ irements 
respecting the servicing of retailers, the tenn "retail er satisfacti on target" is not 
defined in the RFP. Accordingly, would the Lottery please consider deleting RFP 
Section 3.60.52 from the RFP? 

Response: See Amendment No. 13 and 26 . The Texas Lottery conducts a 
statewide sampling of Retailer satisfaction levels regarding service and 
performance . The Retailer satisfaction target is based on the question 
"How would you rate the overall quality of sales service and support (for 
example, sales tips, merchandising strategies, general customer service, 
etc.) that you receive from your lottery sales representative?" 

Possible responses are on a five position scale Excellent, Good, Fair, 
Poor and Very Poor including the alternative response have not received 
sales service from representative . The Texas Lottery conducts Retailer 
Research Surveys monthly to gauge Retailer satisfaction levels on a 
variety of measures. Retailer satisfaction levels will be communicated to 
the Successful Proposer on a quarterly basis. 

Current Retailer satisfaction levels consistently exceed 90% across a 
number of performance questions for both the Texas Lottery and the 
Lottery Operator. It is the Texas Lottery's expectation that Retailer 
satisfaction targets in the future continue to meet or exceed 90%. 

44. Section 3.60.63 Fai lure to Cooperate Fully and in Good Faith in the Convers ion 
to any New System Page 82. In Section 3.60.63, the Lottery provides a li st of 
duties the Successful Proposer must complete during a conversion. including but 
not limited to providing access to the telecommunications network. As access to 

27 

DOCUMENT REDACTED BY TLC -12·10-10 



the telecommunicat ions network is not a typical conversion responsibility, will 
the Lottery please clarify its intent for requiring the Successful Proposer to grant 
such access? 

Response: The Texas Lottery has reviewed this question and declines to 
answer. Please refer to Sections 3.21 , 3.56 and 10.6. 

45. Section 3.60.64, Failure to Provide a Detailed Conversion Plan Within 45 Days of 
Contract Execlltion. Page 83. The header of Section 3.60.64 states "Failure to 
Provide a Detailed Conversion within 45 Days of Contract Execution" (emphasis 
added). The text wi thin this section, however, describes a sanction to be imposed 
for a failure to provide a detai led Conversion Plan within 90 days of Contract 
Execution. Could the Lonery please con finn that no sanctions will be imposed 
unless a Successful Proposer fails to provide a detailed conversion plan within 90 
days of Contract execution? 

Response: Please see Amendment No. 15. The Detailed Conversion 
Plan is due within 45 Days of Contract execution . 

46. Section 3.60.65, Failure to Deliver According to the Final Approved Deta iled 
Conversion Plan, Page 83. RFP Section 3.60.65 states that sanctions in the 
amount of $1 0,000 per day may be assessed for a Successful Proposer's fai lure to 
"deliver according to the final approved Detai led Conversion Plan." Could the 
Lottery please confinn that the phrase "deliver according to" as used in this 
section means "comply with" or "adhere to?" 

Response: The Texas Lottery does not understand the question and 
declines to answer. 

47. Section 7.4. Table 36. Detail Requirement 24. Page 129. The RFP requires that 
the Successful Proposer' s system provide the ability to verify zip codes and 
addresses in all U.S. states and jurisdictions, as well as Canada and Mexico, and 
that the address validate with United States Postal Services (USPS) requi rements. 
Is it the Lottery's intention to require validation of current registered addresses for 
claimants against USPS requirements for each of these countries, or for the 
Successful Proposer's system to check the validity of the combination of address 
infonnation entered aga inst USPS data sources? 

Response: It is expected that the Successful Proposer's system check 
the validity of the combination of address information entered against the 
USPS data sources. 

48. Section 7.6.3 Table 46 Roles and Responsibilities 2 Page 139. The Roles and 
Responsibilities for Sales and Marketing System General Requirements state that 
the Successful Proposer is responsible for developing and implementing tenninal-
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oriented promotions with Lottery products that util ize coupons, free tickets, entry 
forms, vouchers or any other terminal or ticket stock items as required. Will entry 
forms be limited to special drawings that require tenninals to read pre-printed bar 
codes? 

Response: No, the type of promotions that would require the terminal to 
read a bar code would likely involve direct mail or printable couponing 
offers. However, if entry form promotions are contemplated in the context 
that they would be generated from the terminal and require submission via 
another mechanism (mail , internet, etc.), these entry forms would likely 
require unique coding identifiers for secure drawing purposes . 

49. Section 7.11 Table 6 1 Detail Requirement 5 Page 146. Detail Requirement 5 
under System Supported Terminal Functions requ ires the Lottery Gaming System 
to handle various media, forms, objects and optical mark codes, including i) 
system-generated gift cards. Is it the Lottery's intention for physical gift cards to 
be generated and created through the Successful Proposer 's terminals? 

Response: No, it is not the Texas Lottery's intention for the physical gift 
cards to be generated and created through the Successful Proposer's 
terminal. It is intended that the terminal be capable of activating and/or 
loading value to the gift cards. 

50. Section 7.11. Table 61. Detail Requirement 15. Page 148. The Lottery requires 
the Successful Proposer to potentially secure a license for the use of intellectual 
property from a competitor. We believe that the Lottery is in a much better 
position than the Successful Proposer to secure any license with tenns in the best 
interest of the Lottery. For this reason, we respectfully request that the Lottery 
consider removing this requirement. 

Response: The Texas Lottery has reviewed this question and declines to 
modify or amend the RFP. 

51. Section 7.11, Table 61, Detail Requirement 25. Page 149. The RFP states that the 
Retailer Sales Terminal must provide the ability to receive content from a 
centralized content management system, which is provided, mainta ined, and 
administered by the Successful Proposer. Could the Lottery please clarify whether 
or not it will be responsible for providing the approved content that wi ll be sent to 
the sales terminal? 

Response: The Texas Lottery will be responsible for approving all final 
content developed for distribution via the content management system to 
the Retailer sales terminals. However, it is the responsibility of the 
Proposer to coordinate the development of the packaged content which 
will come from a variety of sources: lottery messaging developed directly 
with the Texas Lottery andlor its advertising vendors, store-specific 
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messaging developed in coordination with Retailer chains or groups of 
Retailers, and added value content (news, etc.) contemplated in this 
section . 

Through the Retailer Sales Terminal or attached video displays, the content 
management system shall stream content and infonnation that includes but is not 
limited to: local news feeds, local sports scores, local weather, retai ler specials, 
Texas Lottery-provided content, etc. Would the Louery be willing to provide the 
parameters that will be established to determine "local" boundaries? 

Response : The Texas Lottery is interested in the Proposer providing the 
most localized coverage that can be offered related to the Proposer's 
provision of services to develop and distribute this added value content. 
At a minimum, the Texas Lottery would like to regionalize content based 
on the twenty (20) Designated Market Areas of the State , but would 
consider other alternatives proposed . 

52. Section 7.12. Table 64 Detail Requirement II Page 151. In the RFP, Deta il 
Requirement 11 of Sect ion 7. 12 states: 

''The Success/ul Proposer must provide all thermal paper/or the printing of On
Line tickets from the sales Terminals. The thermal paper must be frOnl- and back
coated and able to wilhstand a temperature of lip 10 180 degrees Fahrenheil. " 

This Proposer has worked with thennal paper supp liers and its printer 
manufacturer to develop non-top-coated thennal paper solutions. This non-top
coated grade meets or exceeds image quality requirements to ensure clear. cri sp 
printed images at all times. In addition, the non-top-coated grade offers 
environmental res istance and archival properties that are similar to previous top
coated grades. Therefore. we respectfully request that the Lottery amend the RFP 
to allow thennal paper solutions that meet or exceed perfonnance requirements 
(at least 180 degrees for greater than 4 hours) that mayor may not be top-coated. 

Response : The Texas Lottery has reviewed this question and declines to 
mOdify or amend the RFP. 

53. Section 7.12, Table 64, Detail Requirement 15, Page 152. The second paragraph 
of this requirement requires a customer "video" display, and in part (c), the 
capabi lity for "broadcasting video resident on the terminal." We respectfully 
request that, in the second paragraph, the tenn "customer oriented video display" 
be replaced with "customer oriented display," and that requi rement (c) be 
removed completely, since it speaks to video capabi lity. 

Response : See Amendment No. 19. 
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54. Section 7.12, Table 65. Response Requirement 3, Page 154. The RFP requires the 
Successful Proposer to include infonnation on the functionality or capability of all 
tenninal devices to interact with retailers' back-office systems. Could the Lottery 
please confinn whether or not the primary goal is to provide retailers automated 
updates to their back-office systems for all retailer transaction, accounting and 
inventory functions? 

Response: It is the Texas Lottery's primary goal to provide Retailers 
automated updates to their back-office systems for all Retailer transaction , 
accounting and inventory functions. 

55. Scction 7.12. Table 65. Soccificd Option 6. Page 154. Regarding Spccificd 
Option 6, in-store selling methods, specifica ll y those deployed in multi-lane retail 
environments, have evolved over time to become more user-friendly in that they 
leverage the retailer's existing infrastructure. Would the Lottery please consider 
replacing the word "tenninal" with the word "solution" in this requirement? 

Response: Please see the response for question #84 . 

56. Attachment H. Page 235. Under the section entitled, "Evaluation of the Cost 
Proposal ," the Lottery states that the percentages submitted will be multiplied by 
a unifonn annual sales figure for evaluation. Could the Lottery please confinn 
whether or not Specified or Invited Options wi ll be part of the cost evaluation, 
and if so, also please specify how? 

Response: Specified and/or Invited Options are not part of the cost 
evaluation . 

57. Glossary ofTenns. page L The Glossary of Tenns defines Backup Data Center as 
being "located in the State of Texas," yet RFP Section 6.6, Table 17, Item 21 
(page 117) simply specifies that the Backup Data Center "be established in a 
separate Local Access and Transport Area (LATA) from the primary site." Based 
upon the requirement in RFP Section 6.6 Tahle 17, the Rackup nata Center could 
be located outside of the State of Texas. 

Does the Lottery require the Backup Data Center to be located in Texas, or can 
the Backup Data center be located in another state? 

Response: Please see Amendments No. 2 and 18. The Backup Data 
Center must be established in a separate Local Access and Transport 
Area (LATA) from the primary site and must be located in the State of 
Texas. 
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58. Glossary of Terms. page III. The Glossary of Terms defines Primary Data Center 
as being "located in Austin, Texas," yet RFP Section 6.6, Table 17, Item 21 (page 
11 7) simply specifies that the "Primary Data Center must be located within the 
state of Texas." 

Must the Primary Data Center be located in Aust in Texas, or can it be located 
somewhere else in Texas? 

Response: Please see Amendment No. 18. The Primary Data Center 
must be located in Austin , Texas. 

59. RFP Section 2.8.3. page I I and RFP Section 2. 15.4. page 15. Wi ll the Lottery 
accept delivery of proposals and bonds via "in person del ivery" by bidder 
personnel? 

Response: Technical proposals can be hand delivered by vendor 
personnel. Cost proposals cannot be hand delivered. 

60. RFP Section 2.8,4. pages II and 12. This RFP Section requires that the proposer 
submit "one ( I) signed original and twenty (20) copies of its Technical Proposal" 
in three~ring hinders. Wi ll the Lottery consider reduc ing the numher of hard 
copies required, and accept more electronic copies instead? 

Response: Please see Amendment NO. 3. With the exception of Part 5, 
Proposers shall provide one (1) signed original and twenty (20) copies of 
the Technical Proposal. For Part 5 only, Proposers shall provide one (1) 
signed original and two (2) copies of all required HSP documentation. 

6 1. RFP Section 2.8.4. pages I I and 12. This RFP Section requires that all pages of 
the Technical Proposal be numbered. Does th is RFP requirement include pre~ 
printed materials such as train ing materials, brochures, exhibits, etc.? 

Response: Yes. 

62. RFP Section 1.9. 1. page 5: RFP Section 2. 15.2. page IS: and Attachment J -
Start-up Costs. Public disclosure of a Bidder's costs could lead to irreparable 
harm if competi tors knew the Bidder's Costs. In addition, such costs figures are 
highly confidential and proprietary to the bidder. 

RFP Section 1.9. 1 states that "a Proposal, or speci fi c parts thereof, may he shown 
by the Proposer to fa ll within one or more of the exceptions to the disclosure 
provided in the" Texas Public Information "Act, the State Lottery or other 
applicable law." 

Would the Lottery object to a Bidder designating its costs as "Confidential 
Information" under RFP Section 1.9. 1? 
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Response: The Texas Lottery does not object; however, you must comply 
with Section 1.9 of the RFP and provide the sections of the TPIA which 
apply to the sections marked "Confidential." 

63. Section 3.25.9 - Successful Proposer's Name or Logo, page 32. Is the Successful 
Proposer allowed to place a small bar-coded label on the bottom or back of 
equipment fo r inventory and tracking purposes? 

Response: Yes. 

64. Section 3.44 - Disclosure of Sanctions and Liquidated Damages. page 39. The 
requirement in th is RFP Section to include "a complete list of all sanctions and 
liquidated damages assessed against the Proposer during the last fi ve (5) years" is 
broad and not the industry standard put forth in similar RFPs recently_ For 
example, the Hoosier Lottery's RFP for an Online Gaming System issued in 
March 2009 required bidders to " list incidents of liquidated damages for the past 
fi ve (5) years where such resulted in an assessment by any juri sdiction of two 
hundred thousand dollars ($200,000) or greater in a twe lve month period." 

Will the Lottery revise the RFP requ irement and limi t the list of Liquidated 
Damages to a speci fic financial threshold? 

Response: Please refer to the response to question #30. In addition, 
please see Amendment No. 8 

65. RFP Sect ion 3.47 - Taxes, Fees and Assessments. page 40. Is the Texas Lottery 
exempt from sales tax? 

Response: Yes. 

Will the Texas Lottery provide a duly executed sa les tax exemption certifi cate for 
goods and services purchased from the vendor awarded this contract? 

Response: Yes. 

66. RFP Section 3.47 - Taxes, Fees and Assessments. page 40. If tax reduc.tions are 
availab le and there is no additiona l cost to the Lottery, will the Lottery assist the 
successful vendor in utilizing state and local jurisdiction tax abatements and/or 
tax credits? 

Response : No. 

67. RFP Section 3.57 - Equipment. page 44. This RFP Section states "The 
Successful Proposer hereby represents and warrants that all equ ipment provided 
sha ll be new, sha ll be free from defects in materials and workmanship, shall be 
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merchantable and fit for the purpose for which it is intended, and shall meet or 
exceed the performance standards and specifications required in this Contract. 
Any equipment, or component thereof, used by the Successful Proposer pursuant 
hereto that does not conform to the foregoing shall be repai red or replaced by the 
Successful Proposer without cost to the Texas Lottery in addition to other 
amounts the Texas Lottery may be ent itl ed to in law or in equity, or as specified 
in the Contract." 

Will the Lottery provide the definition of "equipment" in reference to RFP 
Section 3.57? Does "equipment" include communication equipment (for 
example, equipment currently installed at reta iler locations throughout Texas 
including VSAT, modems, dishes, IDUs, ODU, mounts, etc.)? 

Response: The phrase "equipment provided" in Section 3.57 of the RFP 
applies to all goods for which the RFP establ ishes performance standards 
or specifications. Accordingly, all goods for which this RFP establishes 
performance standards or specifications must be offered and priced in the 
Proposal as new, unused equipment. This includes "communication 
equipment". If questions remain, Prospective Proposers may submit 
questions regarding whether specific categories of equipment are required 
to be bid as new. 

68. Section 3.60.46 - Call Center Answer Time, page 72. This RFP Section states 
"The failure of the Successful Proposer to answer 95% of all calls (answered or 
abandoned) in forty-five (45) seconds or less during any weekl y period may result 
in the Successful Proposer being assessed sanctions. "Weekly" is defined as a 
seven (7) Day period beginning at 12 a.m. on Sunday and ending at II :59 p.m. on 
Saturday. Weekly periods will be considered an independent event; "rolling" 
weekly periods will not be utilized." Liquidated Damages at $50 per call. 

Section 3.60.47 - Call Center Busy Signal Time. page 73. This RFP Section 
states The failure of the Successful Proposer to support 99% of all ca lls without a 
busy signal during any weekly period may result in the Successful Proposer being 
assessed sanctions. "Weekly" is defined as a seven (7) Day period beginning at 12 
a.m. on Sunday and end ing at 11 :59 p.m. on Saturday. Weekly periods will be 
considered an independent event; "rolling" weekly periods will not be uti lized. 
Liquidated Damages at $50 per call. 

3.60.48 - Call Center Abandonment Rate page 73. This RFP Section states "The 
failure of the Successful Proposer to maintain a call abandonment rate less than or 
equal to 5% during any weekly period may result in the Successful Proposer 
being assessed sanctions. "Weekly" is defined as a seven (7) Day period 
beginning at 12 a.m. on Sunday and ending at 11 :59 p.m. on Saturday. Weekly 
periods wi ll be considered an independent event ; "rolling" weekly periods wi ll 
not be utilized." Liquidated Damages at $50 per call. 
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3.60.49 - Call Center Hold Time, page 74. This RFP Section states "The failure 
of the Successful Proposer to maintain a maximum hold time that does not exceed 
two (2) minutes per ca ll may result in the Successful Proposer being assessed 
sanctions. "Weekly" is defined as a seven (7) Day period beginning at 12 3.m. on 
Sunday and ending at II :59 p.m. on Saturday. Weekly periods will be considered 
an independent event; "rolling" weekly periods will not be utilized." Liquidated 
Damages at $50 per call. 

The following questions pertain to the Call Center requirements cited above. 

Due to its natural randomness, in-bound hotline call volume can fluctuate 
significantly from minute to minute - or in the rare case ofa gaming system or 
network issue - hotline call volumes can peak substantiall y during these incidents 
that are covered under RFP Section 3.61.5 (On-Line Game Unavailability). 

Providing hotline sta ffing during all operational times to mitigate potentia l spikes 
in volumes will Sib'llificantly increase the cost to the Lottery in each Bidder's 
pricing model without positively impacting overall sales. 

During incidents and peak periods, the industry best practice is to provide 
automated Interactive Voice Response technology for automated messaging to 
retailers call ing in letting them know that the Call Center is aware of an incident 
and work ing on resolving the issue. These call s could be considered "abandoned" 
because the retailer may hang up after listening to the message. Furthennore, 
typical Lottery hotline calls have a handle time of 120 seconds. 

Will the Lottery amend this requ irement to read: " Retailer ca ll s will be answered 
wi thin ninety (90) seconds or less on average; call abandoned rate shall be less 
than five percent (5%), excluding during documented system incidents which 
require an incident report as detail ed in RFP Section 3.60. 14 (Failure to Report 
Significant lncidents and Anomalies)?" 

Will the Lottery provide the current hold-time by half hour? 

Also, will the Lottery provide the current percentage of call s abandoned for the 
last six months? 

Response: The Texas Lottery has reviewed this question and declines to 
modify or amend the RFP. The average call handle time for the last 6 
months is 302 seconds. Current data on call hold time by the half hour , 
is not tracked . The percentage of abandoned calls for the last 6 months is 
4.01 %. 
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69. Section 3.6 1 - Liquidated Damages Provisions. page 84. 

I. Will the Lottery confirm that the amount of liquidated damages will be 

reasonably and rationally related to damage actua lly incurred by the 
Lottery? Furthennore, wi ll the Lottery confi rm that Liquidated 

Damages wi ll not be assessed in the event the Lottery is not damaged? 

2. Will the Lottery confinn that Liquidated Damages will not be assessed 
by the Lottery under multiple provisions relating to a single incident? 

3. Will the Lottery confinn that the Contractor shall not be liable for 

Liquidated Damages to the extent the incident was caused by the 

Lottery, its retailers, third parties, communications fa ilures or force 
majeure? 

4. Will the Lottery agree that if Liquidated Damages are not assessed 

with in six months of the incident such liquidated damages are deemed 

waived by the Lottery? 

Response: The Texas Lottery has reviewed the question and declines to 
answer. 

70. Section 3.6 1.5 - On-Line Game Unava ilabili ty. page 86. This RFP section states 
" If any On-Line Game is unavailable for sales due to a Lottery Gaming System 
problem, liquidated damages may be assessed. The fi rst two (2) minutes of down 
time for sales will be grace lime, up to a maximum of ten ( 10) minutes of grace 
rime per week. Forty percent (40%) of the previous fourteen ( 14) Days average 
per minute sales for the same affected game, for the same time of Day 
corresponding to the period the game is unava ilable, will be multiplied by the 
number of minutes of down time to compute liquidated damages. If the down time 
is within ten (10) hours of that game's drawing, a sixty percent (60%) factor will 
be used in lieu of forty percent (40%). This calculation will be made for each 
affected On-Line Game." 

Will the Lottery consider using a formul a for estimating damages that will reflec t 
an estimation of the anti cipated actua l loss to the state that are more in line with 
similar jurisdictions? 

Will the Lottery consider revising the Liquidated Damages section to calculate 
Liquidated Damages for Central System unavai lab ility based on an average of the 
prior 13-weeks of sales, same day and a simi lar jackpot amount and then, 
calculating the Liquidated Damages based on the percent of return to state (i.e., 
30%), rather than 40% of the previous fourteen days average per minute sales for 
the same affected game, for the same time of day corresponding to the period the 
game is unava ilable, minus the two minute grace period? 

Response: The Texas Lottery has reviewed this question and declines to 
answer the question and to modify or amend the RFP. 
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71. Section 3.61.7 - Failure to Resolve Terminal and Related Sales Equipment 
Problems. page 88. This RFP Section states: " If the Successful Proposer fails to 
respond to Retailer call s for terminal maintenance and correct terminal problems 
that affect the abili ty to sell or validate tickets (including, but not limited to, 
inadequate On-Line Ticket stock, printer out of ink, terminal down time, service 
degradation, and communication problems), and return the equipment to service 
with in four (4) hours of the time of the service call, liquidated damages may be 
assessed against the Successful Proposer equal to th irty-one percent (31 %) of the 
average sales for the affected Terminal per Day calculated over the last ten ( 10) 
Days. Fai lure to resolve the problem within eight (8) hours of the time of the 
service call may result in the Successful Proposer being assessed liquidated 
damages equal to sixty two percent (62%) of the average sa les for the affected 
Terminal per Day calculated over the last ten (10) Days." 

Wi ll the Lottery consider a ti ered service level approach based on sa les or 
location for the terminal service level repair or replacement time schedule? 

As required by this RFP Section, this could fo rce the vendor to potentially drive
by the # I reta iler in the state to service the lowest reta iler based on the response 
time and liquidated damage structure ahove. Furthermore, hased on overall size 
of Texas covering 268,601 square miles with at least 16,500 online terminals 
and peripherals it will be virtually imposs ible to respond to every "non~ 
operational" terminal during the service hours above within four hours 
without severely impacting staffing models and pricing without positively 
impacting overall sales or support. 

Response: The Texas Lottery has reviewed this question and declines to 
answer the question and to modify or amend the RFP. 

72. RFP Section 4. 1 - Statement of Understanding. subsection 4.1.1. page 96. Wil l 
the "certificate executed by an authori zed representative of the Proposer ... " 
requested in this subsection, presented on company letterhead be an acceptab le 
format in which to meet th is requirement? 

Response: Yes . 

73. RFP Section 4. 7.4 - Supplemental Information. Item 3) Business Plans. page 102. 
As a publ icly traded corporation on a US stock exchange, disclosure of certain 
business plans and acquisitions that are not also publicly disclosed will expose the 
Bidder to violation of " Insider Trader/Information" regulations. 

Will the Lottery remove RFP Section 4.7.4, item 3) Business Plans from the RFP? 

Response : Section 4.7.4 does not require disdosure of business plans 
that qualify as confidential under applicable law and that have been 

37 

DOCUMENT REDACTED BY TLC -12-10-10 



maintained as confidential. However, all publicly available information 
regarding the Proposer's business plans as described in Section 4.7.4(3) 
must be included in the response. 

74. RF P Secti on 4.8 - Background Investigations. page 103. Is the Lottery or the 
Apparent Successful Proposer responsible for the costs of background 
investigations? 

If it is the Apparent Successful Proposer, what is the typical cost of Texas 
Background investigations? 

Response: Please see Amendments NO.4 and 17. The current estimated 
base cost for a background check as required in Section 3.13.1 is 
$154.96. Any additional background requirements that may be deemed 
necessary to complete the background check, as determined by the Texas 
Lottery in its sole discretion , may result in additional cost which may be 
billed to the Successful Proposer. 

The estimated cost for vendor background investigation for the Apparent 
Successful Proposer for this RFP may range from $250,000 to $500,000. 

The Successful Proposer will be required to post funds with the Texas 
Lottery from which the Texas Lottery can draw to pay for such costs. 

75. RFP Section 5.5.1 Proposer Intends to Subcontract. page 106 and Attachment C. 
HSP fonn . Both page 106 of the RFP and Section 8 of Attachment C require 
bidders to indicate the "estimated percentage of the contract that will be 
subcontracted to each subcontractor, and specify the approx imate dollar amount 
to be paid to each subcontractor." By providing both the estimated percentage of 
the contract and the dollar amount, it will be easy to mathematically compute a 
bidder's price, thereby violating the RFP requirement that pricing only be 
contained in the Price Proposa l. 

Will the Lottery el iminate the requirement to provide both the estimated 
percentage of the contract that will be subcontracted to each subcontractor, and 
the approximate dollar amount to be paid to each subcontractor? 

Response: The HSP requirement to include both the expected percentage 
of the contract and the approximate dollar amount of each subcontract is 
dictated by 34 Texas Administrative Code, Part 1, Chapter 20, Subchapter 
B, Rule §20 .14. This information is not viewed by evaluators. 

76. Section 5.6 Subcontracting Opportunities. page 106. In this RFP Section the 
Lottery speci fies the «HUB participation goal for this RFP is 33%." Can the 
lottery provide some explanation as to what matrix thi s calculation is based upon 
(e.g., sales, revenue, overall contract value)? 
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Response: The HUB goal of 33 percent corresponds to the statewide HUB 
goal established by the State of Texas Disparity Study for "Other Services" 
(services other than construction or professional services). This is the 
agency's overall goal for all contracts which fall into the category of "Other 
Services." It should be noted that the Lottery Operations and Services 
contract makes up a large portion of the Texas Lottery Commission's 
"Other Services" category. Although the Texas Lottery Commission 
encourages all Proposers to make a good faith effort to assist the agency 
in reaching its goal, the evaluation process for the HSP is not based on 
the percentage of work assigned to HUBs. It is evaluated strictly on a 
pass/fa il basis. If a Proposer does not submit a compliant HSP which 
demonstrates that the good faith effort was performed for each identified 
subcontracting area, its Proposal wi ll be disqualified and the remainder of 
the Proposal wi ll not be evaluated . 

77. RFP Section 6.5 - Compliance Review. page 114. What is the typical cost of an 
"initial risk assessment and risk analysis report?" 

Response: Based on historical cost, the initial risk assessment and risk 
analysis report is approximately $156,000. Annual costs for compliance 
monitoring is approximately $350,000. 

78. Section 6.6 - Facilities Support Services. Table 17. Items 11 and 14. page 11 6. 
Both Items require space dedicated to the Texas Lottery. We understand that the 
Successful Proposer will supply the furnishings. However, is the Successful 
Proposer also required to supply network and phone services? 

Response: Yes, the Successful Proposer is required to supply network 
and phone services. 

79. RFP Section 7.4 - Claims & Validat ions. Tab le 36, Item 3, page 128. 
Specifically. what requirements for security features on check stock does the 
Texas Lottery utilize that exceeds the security features of other lotteries? 

Response: Whi le there are a variety of security features available, the 
Texas Lottery Commission currently requires the following minimum 
security measures associated with its printed check stock: 
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Information Redacted 

§552.101/466.022/552.139 

The Texas Lottery Commission, in its sole discretion , reserves the right to 
mOdify security requirements for its check stock in keeping with industry 
best practices and technology advancements . The Texas Lottery may 
look to the Successful Proposer for assistance in identifying and 
implementing enhanced security measures in this area over the life of the 
Contract. 

Approx imately how many checks does the Lottery write annually? 

Response : The Texas Lottery has written the following number of 
checks annually: 

2007 - 58,057 
2008 - 63,171 
2009 - 60,944 

Can the Lottery provide a voided sample? 

Response: No voided sample will be provided . 

80. RFP Section 7.4 Claims and Vali dation. Item 25. page 130. Wi ll the Lottery 
provide the number of "super retailers" and the specific addresses of those 
locations? 

Response: The Texas Lottery does not currently have "super retaile r" 
locations. Proposers are being asked to demonstrate that they can 
provide system support for such Retailers should this concept be 
implemented in the future . 

81. RFP Sect ion 7.6.3 - Sales and Marketing. Table 46. Item 7. Page 139. Will the 
successfu l proposer design the layout for the web-based player reg istration 
program? 

Response: Yes, as described in this section of the RFP. 

Will the Lottery provide details on the type of player information the Lottery w ill 
collect and funct ionali ties that should ex ist on the system? 

Response: The Texas Lottery does not currently have a web-based player 
system or program. However, it intends to work with the Successful 
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Proposer to implement a system utilizing jointly identified industry best 
practices for such systems. 

82. RFP Section 7.10 - ICS System, Table 58. Item 4, page 145. What is the annual 
cost paid by the Lottery for third party ICS software and support? 

Response: The annual cost for ICS software and support is unknown. The 
Texas Lottery does not directly payor reimburse for these services as 
they are included in the current contract for Lottery Operations and 
Services. 

83. RFP Section 7.12 - Sales Tenninals. Table 64, Item 4. page 15 1. Forthe 3,500 
Player Activated Sales Termina ls required in this RFP, what is the quantity of 
each size machine (e.g., 8 bins, 12 bins, 24 bins, etc.) to be provided? 

Response: Information on equipment deployment, including all equipment 
bin counts, was provided to pre-proposal attendees who signed non
disclosure statements on February 2 via email. There are currently fewer 
than 3,500 Player Activated Sales Terminals deployed . However, it is 
anticipated that the bin requirements for future Player Activated Sales 
Terminal deployments will be roughly equivalent in scale to current bin 
allocations in the equipment profile provided . The Texas Lottery is 
seeking maximum flexibility with regard to the scalability of equipment to 
service both existing and new trade styles. 

84. RFP Section 7. 12 - Sales Tenninals. Table 65 . Speci fi ed Options Items 5 and 6 
page 154. What quantity o f automated in-counter di spensing units should be 
priced? 

What size unit (i.e., number of bins) does the Lottery want provided? Please 
provide quanti ties for each size unit. 

What quantity of in -lane tenn inals should be priced? 

How many retailers w ill have in- lane tenninals? 

Response: Please see Amendment No. 20 and 27. The Texas Lottery is 
amending Section 7.12 and Attachment H to remove Specified Option 
Item 5 for the automated in-counter ticket dispensing unit. Regarding 
Specified Option Item 6 for the in-lane terminals, the Texas Lottery does 
not currently have deployments of this type. However, it is anticipated that 
in-lane sales solutions may present opportunities for increased points of 
sale at both existing and potential new trade styles over the life of the 
Contract. Proposers are asked to provide unit pricing in increments of 
500. 
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85. Sect ion 7.12 - Sales Termina ls and Related Systems Sales Equipment. page 150. 
How does the Lottery define/specify mid-range terminals for the next contract? 

Response: Mid-Range sales terminals are intended to describe smaller 
footprint terminals deployed in business and sales environments not 
conducive to a full size (standard) terminal. In Table 64, Item 3, the Texas 
Lottery describes the minimum functionality for all sales terminals either 
standard or mid-range. Also, please see the Glossary for the Retailer 
Sales Terminal definition . 

86. Section 7.12 Sales Terminals and Related Sales Equipment. Table 64. Item 3. 
page 150. Will the Lottery provide a li st of electronically integrated cash 
dispenser types used by Texas Lottery retailers in addition to Tidel Safes? 

Response: Please see Amendment No. 19. The requirement for sales 
terminals to support electronically integrated cash dispensers used by 
Retailers, including tidel safes, has been removed . 

87. Section 7.12 - Sales TenTIina l, and Related Sales Equipment, Table 64, Item 15, 
page 152. Will the Lottery clarify the physical differences in the characteri st ics of 
the video displays required in reta il environments (i.e. , where flat panel displays 
can and cannot be deployed)? 

Will the Lottery elaborate on the differences in the content displayed on the video 
displays required in retail environments (i.e., where flat panel di splays can and 
cannot be deployed) specifically concerning the capabi lity of broadcasting video 
on a non-flat panel display. 

Response: Please see the response to question #51 . 

What is the percentage of Lottery retailer locations that the Lottery estimates that 
a flat panel video display cannot be deployed? 

Response: The Texas Lottery currently does not use fiat panel video 
displays. Information on current retail locations including their trade style 
by SIC code was provided to pre-proposal attendees who signed non
disclosure statements on February 2 via email. The allocations of both 
video and non-video displays will be based on a variety of factors 
including the range of vendor proposed solutions and the attractiveness of 
the packaged content referenced elsewhere in the RFP and its impact on 
the willingness of Retailer trade styles to accept the placement of such 
devices. 

88. RFP Section 7. 13 - Call Center Support. page 157 . What specific Asian 
languages (Japanese, Korean, Chinese, Vietnamese, etc.) are contained within the 
Reta iler base? 
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What specific Middle Eastern languages are contained within the Retailer base? 

Response: The Texas Lottery does not collect data on the specific native 
languages spoken by its Retailers. However, approximately 42% of the 
Reta iler base is made up of Retai lers that identify themselves as 
belonging to a minority demographic group. Among those that identify 
themselves in these groups, most Retailers indicate being of Hispanic or 
Asian (including Middle Eastern) backgrounds. Most Retailers either 
speak English or Spanish as a first or second language and primarily all 
call center support occurs in these two languages. However, the diversity 
of the Retai ler base is highlighted to give proposers background with 
regard to Retailer cal l center support. 

89. RFP Part 8 Sales & Marketing - General Ouestion. page 163. Will the Lottery 
provide a list of all current retailers, including sales by game for the past two 
fi scal years, in an Excel spreadsheet fonnal? 

Response: The attachment to this question is being compiled and wi ll be 
released when it is available. 

Further, for the list of current reta ilers recently received, could the Lottery clari fy 
what the "8" in the column headers of Columns U, V and W means? Are these 
average weekly sales for the past 8 weeks? 

Also, as both Columns K and L are labeled Mid-Range Tenninals, could the 
Lottery clarify the difference in these two columns? 

Response: The number "8" in the headers of columns U, V and W relates 
to 8 week sales averages. The sales figures listed in these columns 
represent the average weekly sales for the most recent 8 weeks at the 
time the list was created . Columns labeled K and L both list Mid-Range 
Terminals at Retailer locations. The Mid-Range Terminals listed in 
column K are dial-up devices and those listed in column L utilize a 
dedicated data line. 

90. RFP Section 8.2 Sales Management and Business Development. Table 78. Item 4. 
page 163. Will the Lottery provide a detailed organization chart of the current 
sales management organization and the current business development 
organization whose full-time responsibilities are to help the Lottery identi fy new 
selling opportunities and new marketing strategies? 

Response: For the Texas Lottery, the attached organizational chart details 
the Lottery Operations Division staff whose responsibilities include 
working with the Lottery Operator vendor related to sales management 
and business development. Specific emphasis on these functions occurs 
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in the Products, Advertising and Promotions and the Retailer Services 
Departments of the Division . 

The Texas Lottery declines to respond to this request for current Lottery 
Operator information for reasons expressed in the "Note to All Prospective 
Proposers." 

9 1. Sect ion 8.2 Sa les Management and Business Development. Table 78. Item 6 at 
page 163. Do the current LSR and business development employee meetings in 
Texas take place exclusively within the city of Austin, or throughout the state in 
various locations? If the latter, will the Lottery identify those other locations and 
the job positions of the Vendor staff that regu larly attend those meetings? Are 
these meetings face-Ie -face or via conference ca ll and/or webinar? 

Response: The current LSR and business development employee 
meetings take place throughout the state (currently in the 10 district offices 
operated by the Lottery Operator). These meetings occur face-to-face 
under the current structure. 

However, the Texas Lottery is looking for innovative thinking and 
solutions. Proposers may offer solutions that vary from the current practice 
that they believe will further the Texas Lottery's vision, mission and core 
values. 

92. Secti on 8.2 Sales Management and Business Development. Table 78. Item 6 dl. 
page 153 . Will the Lottery descri be how the existing LSR staff currently access 
the Lottery Gaming System in real-time? 

Response: The Texas Lottery declines to answer this question. The Texas 
Lottery is looking for innovative thinking and solutions. Proposers may 
offer solutions that vary from the current practice that they believe will 
further the Texas Lottery's vision, mission and core values. 

93. Section 8.2 - Sales Management and Business Development Table 78 Item 6 e) 
page t 63 . Will the Lottery provide details regarding how many days the 2009 
Annual Sales Meeting was he ld; how many Lo ttery and Vendor personnel were in 
attendance; and where specificall y was th is event held? 

Response: The 2009 Annual Sales Meeting was held at the Austin Hilton 
Hotel on 5th Street on Thursday, June 1sth and half a day Friday, June 
19th The actual number of attendees is not tracked, and therefore, 
unknown. The sales meeting was designed for all Lottery Operator sales 
staff and management. In addition , Lottery Operator corporate staff were 
present for presentations and product demonstrations. Most of the 
sessions were open to and attended by Texas Lottery management and 
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Lottery Operations staff. In addition , product demonstrations were open to 
all Texas Lottery staff. 

However, the Texas Lottery is looking for innovative thinking and 
solutions. Proposers may offer solutions that vary from the current 
practice that they believe will further the Texas Lottery's vision , mission 
and core values. 

94. Section 8.2 - Sales Management and Business Development. Table 78. Item 10, 
page 164. How many Key, Corporate or Chain Retai lers does the Lottery 
currently have? 

Will the Lottery provide a list of these types of accounts along with weekly sales 
by game? 

Response: Please see Attachment 094. 

95. Section 8.2 Sales Management and Business Development. Table 78 Item 14 
page 164. Wi ll the Lottery provide examples of what the Lottery means by the 
term "content" in this requirement? 

Response: 'Content' means graphics and/or video that would be provided 
by a Key, Corporate or Chain account for dissemination via the Content 
Management System upon approval by the Texas Lottery. This Retailer 
account-provided material might be advertising/messaging highlighting 
non-lottery products or jointly developed co-branded promotions with the 
Texas Lottery. The distribution of this Retailer-specific content might be 
placed as added value associated with Retailer lottery promotions. See 
also Table 61 , Item 25. 

96. RFP Section 8.3 - Marketing, Table 80, Item 7. page 165. Will the Lottery 
elaborate on what the word "Markets" encompasses with respect to thi s RFP 
requirement? 

Is thi s the design, production, distribution of POS as well as adverti sing, or all of 
the above? 

Response: The Texas Lottery requires the Lottery Operator to "market" or 
sell-in and promote Lottery Products in the Retailer environment including 
the distribution and placement of pas materials. The Texas Lottery has a 
separate contract with advertising vendors for the design and production 
of advertising materials. However, the Texas Lottery expects proposers to 
make a substantial commitment to marketing programs and product brand 
development efforts. Please also review all sections of Part 8 : Sales and 
Marketing for additional sales and marketing activities required under this 
RFP. 
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97. RFP Section 8.3 - Marketing, Table 80, Item 13 a), page 166. Will the Lottery 
provide examples of the annual detai led analysis of all Texas Lottery Online 
Games, including the three (3) year sales projections for each game for the last 
two fi scal years (FY08 and FY09)? 

Response: This is not a requirement of the current Lottery Operator 
contract. The Texas Lottery is providing a 2-year sales prOjection. Please 
see Attachment 097. 

98. RFP Section 8.3 Marketing, Item 14. page 166. Will the Lottery provide 
samples of the weekly sales reports that they current ly rece ive? 

Response: Please see Attachment 098 . Sample weekly sales reports that 
are received from the Lottery Operator are attached. 

The Texas Lottery is looking for innovative thinking and solutions. 
Proposers may offer solutions that vary from the current practice that they 
believe will further the Texas Lottery's vision , mission and core values. 

99. RFP Section RA - Lottery Sales Representatives General Question page 166. 
Will the Lottery provide copies orall current retailer and LSR train ing materials? 

Response: The current Retailer Guide is posted on the Texas Lottery web 
site at the following link: 
http ://www.txlottery.org/export/sites/defaultiRetai lers/Retailer _Guide .html 

The Texas Lottery declines to respond to this request for current Lottery 
Operator information for reasons expressed in the "Note to All Prospective 
Proposers." 

The Texas Lottery is looking for innovative thinking and solutions. 
Proposers may offer solutions that vary from the current practice that they 
believe will further the Texas Lottery's vision , mission and core values. 

100. RFP Section 8.4 - Lottery Sales Representatives, Genera l Question. page 166. 

Given the need to ensure adequate space for marketing and POS support materials 
within an LSR's vehicle, wi ll the Lottery provide a list of the type, year and 
quantity ofLS R vehicles currently in the fleet to support the sales and business 
development organizations? 

What role does the LSR fleet of vehicles play in enab ling LSRs to fulfill their job 
requirements? 

Do all LSRs use vehicles? 
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Response: The LSR fieet of vehicles provides for the basic transportation 
needs of the LSRs inherent in covering a sales route in dense urban, 
semi-rural and rural environments. The vehicles, typically minivans, allow 
for adequate storage space to transport the basic tools, products, POS, 
terminals and general resources required to support a typical lottery sales 
route. Vehicle requirements will vary based on a proposer's LSR to 
Retailer ratio and Retailer support plans. All LSRs use vehicles . 

The Texas Lottery declines to respond to this request for current Lottery 
Operator information for reasons expressed in the UNote to All Prospective 
Proposers." 

101. RFP Section 8.4 - Lottery Sales Representatives, Table 82. Item 27. page 168. 
Will the Lottery provide a deta il ed li st of the type and quantity of sign age, 
supplies, and other materials currently provided by the Vendor to the Retailer? 

Response: The Texas Lottery produces numerous POS pieces for the 
Retailer base . These pieces are distributed by the LSRs and include but 
are not limited to: playstation pieces, terminal toppers, pump toppers, door 
decals, various types of jackpot sign age, specialty signage based on 
Retailer needs, change mats, clerk stickers, etc. Most POS items are 
produced for the entire Retailer base; however, due to Retailer placement 
restrictions, some pieces are produced in smaller quantities. 

Please see Attachment Q1 01 for sample POS brochure for more 
permanent Retailer signage. 

See section 8.4 for a description of suppl ies that are distributed by LSRs. 
Quantities of any particular item are dependent upon the types of 
terminals deployed and the sales levels at individual Retailers and across 
the Retailer base. 

102. RFP Section 8.4 - Lottery Sales Representatives. Table 82. Item 28. page 168. 
Will the Lottery provide a detai led map showing the geographic regions that 
every LSR is responsible for within the sales organization? 

Response: The Texas Lottery does not have a map with this information. 

The Texas Lottery is looking for innovative thinking and solutions. 
Proposers may offer solutions that vary from the current practice that they 
believe will further the Texas Lottery's vision, mission and core values. 

103 . RFP Section 8.4 - Lottery Sales Representatives, Table 82. Item 29. page 168. 
Given that Lottery must approve the incentive plan, will the Lottery provide a 
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copy of the comprehensive annual incentive plan for LSRs and sales and business 
development management that was developed in 2009? 

Response: The Texas Lottery declines to answer this question. The Texas 
Lottery is looking for innovative thinking and solutions. Proposers may 
offer solutions that vary from the current practice that they believe will 
further the Texas Lottery's vision , mission and core values. 

104. RFP Section 8.4.1 - Retailer Visit. Tab le 84, Item 12, page 169. Wi ll the Lottery 
provide the 2009 LSR sales cycle schedule? 

Response: Please see Amendment No. 21 . LSRs are required in the 
current contract to visit each Retailer at least once during each two (2)
week sales cycle regardless of sales level or geographic region ; for 
Retailers that use only a Mid-Range Specialty Terminal, the LSR is only 
required to visit such Retailers at least once during each period of two (2) 
consecutive sales cycles. 

The Texas Lottery amends the RFP: "The Successful Proposer must 
submit the sales cycle schedule to the Texas Lottery on an annual basis 
for each State fiscal year no later than August 1." 

Start Date End Date 

8/ 25/2008 9/ 7/ 2008 
9/ 8/2008 9/21/ 2008 

9/ 22/2008 10/ 5/ 2008 
10/ 6/2008 10/19/2008 

10/ 20/2008 11/ 2/ 2008 
11/ 3/2008 11/16/2008 

11/ 17/2008 11/30/2008 
12/ 1/2008 12/14/ 2008 

12/ 15/2008 12/28/ 2008 
12/ 29/2008 1/11/ 2009 
1/ 12/2009 1/25/ 2009 
1/ 26/2009 2/ 8/ 2009 

2/ 9/2009 2/22/ 2009 
2/23/2009 3/ 8/ 2009 
3/ 9/2009 3/22/ 2009 

3/ 23/2009 4/ 5/2009 
4/ 6/2009 4/19/ 2009 

4/ 20/2009 5/ 3/ 2009 
5/ 4/2009 5/17/ 2009 

5/ 18/2009 5/31/ 2009 
6/ 1/2009 6/14/ 2009 

6/ 15/2009 6/28/ 2009 
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6/29/2009 7/12/ 2009 
7/13/2009 7/26/2009 
7/ 27/2009 8/9/2009 
8/10/2009 8/23/ 2009 
8/24/2009 9/6/2009 

105. RFP Sect ion 8.4.1 - Retai ler Vis it. Table 84 . Item 14. page 169. Will the Lottery 
clarify how the delivery of the sell -in, advertising and other materials by the LSRs 
to the Retailers meant to be fulfilled? 

Does thi s include LSR in-person del ivery as well as courier and/or mai l services? 

Response: LSRs currently deliver sell-in , advertising and other materials 
to the Retailer base in-person during their required sales visits. The Texas 
Lottery is looking for innovative thinking and solutions. Proposers may 
offer solutions that vary from the current practice that they believe will 
further the Texas Lottery's vision , mission and core values. 

106. RFP Section 8.4.1 - Retailer Visit. Table 84. Item 18, page 170. Will the Lottery 
provide detai ls regarding how the Lottery currently sets Retai ler satisfaction 
targets? 

Will the Lottery provide past Retailer satisfaction targets? 

Response: Please see the response to question #43 . 

107. RFP Section 8.5 - Retailer Contests and Retailer-based Player Promotions. 
General Question. page 173. Wi ll the Lottery provide the approved player 
promotional plans and retailer contests for the past two fi scal years (FY08 and 
FY09) as well as the proposed FY I 0 plan, including system based promotions for 
both online and instant games? 

Response: Please see Attachment Q107. 

108. RFP Section 8.5 Retailer Contests and Retai ler-based Player Promotions. 
General Question. page 174. Will the Lottery describe its current player 
registration data system? 

Response: Please see the response to question #81 . 

109. RFP Section 8.5 - Retailer Contests and Reta iler-based Player Promotions. Table 
92. Item 18. page 174. Wi ll the Lottery provide a copy of the annual incentive 
program plan for Reta il ers deve loped in 2009? 
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Response: Please see Amendment No. 22 . The Successful Proposer shall 
submit the annual incentive plan for Retailers, based on the State fiscal 
year, on or before May 31 51 of each year. 

Please see Attachment 0107. 

The Texas Lottery is looking for innovative thinking and solutions. 
Proposers may offer solutions that vary from the current practice that they 
believe will further the Texas Lottery's vision , mission and core values. 

11 0. RFP Section 8.5 - Retailer Contests and Retailer-based Player Promotions. Table 
92. Item 20. page 174. According to thi s Item, the Texas Lonery currently has an 
RNG system for Megaplier on Mega Mill ions. Is the RNG required by this Item 
in addition to the existing RNG? 

Can the Lottery clarify how "stand-alone, automated" RNG is currently used? 

Can the Lottery clarify what "stand-a lone, automated" RNG infonnation is used 
for? 

Response: The RNG is separate from and in addition to the RNG used for 
the Megaplier drawings. 

The Texas Lottery is requiring the Successful Proposer to supply the 
RNG's as specified in table 92 , item 20, for use during player promotions 
and/or Retailer incentive programs. 

Ill. RFP Section 8.5 - Retailer Contests and Retailer-based Player Promotions. Table 
93. Item 3, page 175. Will the Lottery clarify if the vendor or the Lottery pays the 
retailer incentives? 

Response: The Texas Lottery pays the Retailer incentives. This can 
include packs of tickets, cash incentives or other items of value. 

11 2. RFP Section 8.6 - Promotional Events and Retai ler Promotions, Genera l 
Question. page 175. Will the Lottery provide a comprehensive li st of all the 
community and statewide fairs, festivals and events supported around the state of 
Texas, including the duration (number of days) of each event, the city/town/area 
in which the event takes place, and whether the event was a selling or non-selling 
event? 

Will the Lottery provide a li st of retailer promotions involving Active 
Participation Events? 

Response : Please see Attachment 0112a and 0112b. A list of fiscal year 
2008 and 2009 selling and non-selling events is attached . In fiscal year 
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2008, there were approximately 23 Customer Appreciation Days, 639 
Lone Star Spins and 400 Ambassador Promotions conducted . In fiscal 
year 2009 , there were approximately 30 Customer Appreciation Days and 
739 Lone Star Spins conducted. 

The Successful Proposer is required to recommend annual promotional 
events to increase product trials and educate new and potential players 
about Lottery Products. The Texas Lottery is looking for innovative 
thinking and solutions. Proposers may offer solutions that vary from the 
current practice that they believe will further the Texas Lottery's vision, 
mission and core values. 

113. RFP Section 8.6 - Promotio nal Events and Retailer Promotions. General 
Question. page 176. Who is responsible for the purchase o f the drawing box, 
entry forms, Lottery promotional items and POS advertising the dates and times 
of the drawing? 

If the Successful Proposer is responsible for the payment of these items, 
approx imate ly how many Retai ler Store 2nd Chance Drawings took place during 
the past two fi scal years (FY08 and FY09)? 

Response: Please see Amendment No. 23 . The Successful Proposer is 
responsible for purchasing the drawing boxes, entry forms and POS 
advertising the dates and times of the drawing (see Table 94 , number 34 
f). The Texas Lottery is responsible for purchasing the promotional items 
(see Table 94 , number 7). 

There were approximately 545 2nd Chance Drawings conducted in fiscal 
year 2008 and 807 2" Chance Drawings conducted in fiscal year 2009. 
The Texas Lottery is looking for innovative thinking and solutions. 
Proposers may offer solutions that vary from the current practice that they 
believe will further the Texas Lottery's vision , mission and core values. 

114. RFP Section 8.6 - Promotional Events and Retailer Promotions General 
Question. page 176. Who is responsible for the purchase or cost of the instant 
tickets, clerk stickers, and P~S to promote the Ask for the Sale promotion? 

If the Successful Proposer is responsible for the payment of these items, 
approx imately how many Ask for the Sale promotions took place during the past 
two fiscal years (FY08 and FY09)? 

Response: The Successful Proposer is responsible for purchasing the 
clerk stickers and POS to promote the Ask for the Sale promotion (see 
Table 94, number 34 f). The Texas Lottery provides the instant tickets 
needed for the Ask for the Sale promotion . 
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There were approximately 1,902 Ask for the Sale promotions conducted in 
fisca l year 2008 and 2,073 Ask for the Sale promotions conducted in fiscal 
year 2009. The Texas Lottery is looking for innovative thinking and 
solutions. Proposers may offer solutions that vary from the current practice 
that they believe wi ll further the Texas Lottery's vision, mission and core 
values. 

Please see Amendment No. 23 . 

115. RFP Section 8.6 - Promotion Events and Reta iler Promotions. Table 94, Item 26. 
page 178. Will the Lottery provide the current number of dedicated promotions 
staff, not including the promotions manager/coordinator? 

Response: The Texas Lottery dedicates five full-time staff members to the 
oversight, operations and management of promotional events and Retailer 
promotions. The current Lottery Operator contract calls for a promotions 
coordinator and two assistants to develop and manage operations of the 
statewide Lottery promotions. The field level and on-site management 
and administration of promotions are currently performed by LSR 
personnel as a part of their overall responsibilities. In this RFP, the Texas 
Lottery is seeking dedicated promotions program staff who will also 
participate directly in the field level and on-site management of 
promotional events and Retailer promotions to ensure the highest level of 
quality and consistency in the conduct of these events. (See Table 95, 
number 3). 

116. RFP Section 8.6 - Promotion Events and Retailer Promotions, Table 94. Item 28, 
page 178. Does the requirement for the provision of event safety and security 
include the hiring of an actual poli ce o fficer and/or security guard? 

Response: The Successful Proposer will be responsible for event safety 
and security. The Successful Proposer will work with Lottery Promotions 
and Lottery Risk Management staff to identify appropriate safety and 
security requirements for each event. This may include police/security 
officers at some events. 

117. RF P Section ~L6 - Promotion Events and Retailer Promotions. Table 94. Item 29. 
page 178. Who is responsible for the purchase of Lottery-branded uniforms for 
all Successful Proposer and Retailer event staff? 

Response: The Successful Proposer is responsible for the purchase of 
Texas Lottery-branded unifomns for event Lottery Operator Vendor staff 
and Retailer staff as noted under the referenced section of the RFP. 

118. RFP Section 8.6 - Promotion Events and Retailer Promotions. Table 94, Item 34 
d) page 179. Will the Lottery provide the complete detailed specifications of all 
the current Promotional Trai lers? 
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Response: The Texas Lottery does not have detailed specifications for the 
promotional tra ilers as they are provided by the current Lottery Operator. 
Please see the response to question no. 119. 

119. RFP Section 8.6 - Promotion Events and Retai ler Promotions, Table 94. Item 34 
d) Promotional Trailers. page 179. Will the Lottery provide the name and contact 
detai ls of the equipment manufacturers of the current Promot ional Trailers? 

Response: The large trailers were designed by CAD Industries, LLC in 
Franksville, WI. The small trailers are similar to a Magnum concession 
trailer. 

120. RFP Section 8.6 - Promotion Events and Retailer Promotions. Table 94. Item 34 
0, General Supplies and Equipment. page 179. Will the Lottery provide a 
detai led li st of all Lottery-approved items currently used to conduct promotional 
events or Retai ler promotion? 

Response: In addition to the items listed in Section B.6, Table 94 , Item 34 
I), other items that are currently being used at Texas Lottery promotions 
are feather flags with poles, play stations, lights for canopy, message 
boards, vertitubes, megaphones, cow bells, signage, stickers, curb signs, 
sandbags, zip ties, bungee cords, Texas Lottery flags with poles, table 
cloths and cleaning supplies . The Texas Lottery is looking for innovative 
th inking and solutions. Proposers may offer solutions that vary from the 
current practice that they believe will further the Texas Lottery's vision , 
mission and core values. 

121. RFP Section 8.6 - Promotion Events and Reta iler Promotions. Table 95. Item 3. 
page 180. 

Will the Lottery consider amending this requirement, and not require the inclusion 
of detai led resumes of all the promotions team within the bid response? 

Response: Please see Amendment No. 24 . Proposers can provide 
detailed job descriptions in lieu of resumes for planned promotion team 
members. 

122. RFP Sect ion 8.7 Marketing Materials and Related Equipment Table 97 Item 4 
at page 181. In order for non-incumbent bidders to properly plan, it will be 
useful to the Lottery to provide the specifications and/or supplier of the current in
store playstation(s} configurat ions (e.g. stand-alone, table-top, etc.)? 

Are playstations required to be ADA-compliant? 
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Will all the current playstations be refreshed at the outset of the new contract, or 
as needed through regular wear and tear use? 

Response: The Texas Lottery currently deploys only stand-alone style 
playstation units. See Attachment 0 122 provided in response to question 
#101 . The Texas Lottery is looking for innovative thinking and solutions. 
Proposers may offer solutions that vary from the current practice that they 
believe will further the Texas Lottery's vision , mission and core values. 
The Texas Lottery particularly is interested in an optimum mix of 
playstation options that could be selected for best fit and placement within 
various Retai ler environments. All playstations provided must be new and 
must be ADA compliant. See Section 8.7, table 97 for requirements 
related to replacement due to wear and tear use. 

123. RFP Section 8.7 - Marketing Materials and Related Equipment. Table 97. Item 4 
c), page 18 1. Will the Lottery provide the specifications and/or supplier of the 
current in-store neon lottery sign with attached LED/Starlite Si!,'Tls? 

Response: Please see Attachment 0123 . The supplier for the current in
store signs is Everbrite, Inc. 

124. RFP Section 8.7 - Marketing Materials and Related Equipment. Table 97, Item 4 
c), page 18 1. Wi ll the Lottery describe the specifications and quantity of any 
wired and/or wireless jackpot infonnat ion sign that the Lottery currently has 
deployed at Retail locations? 

Response: Please see the response to Question #123. 

125. RFP Section 8.7 - Marketing Materia ls and Related Equipment. Table 97. Item 4 
cl. page 181 . This RFP Section states that "current deployment of marketing 
materia ls and related equipment can be found in Appendix I, TLC Current State 
Operations." To the best of our knowledge, this Appendix was not issued with the 
RFP. 

Will the Lottery provide a pdf of - or a link to - Appendix 1, TLC Current State 
Operations? 

Response: TLC Current State Operations is Attachment K. Instant Ticket 
dispenser data by retail location was provided to pre-proposal attendees 
who signed non-disclosure statements on February 2 via e-mail. Please 
see Attachment 0125 for sign and playstation data by retai l location . 

126. RFP Section 8.7 - Marketing Materials and Related Equipment. Table 97. Item 5. 
page 181. How often are instant ticket dispensers currently replaced? 

How often are play stations current ly replaced? 
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How often are Texas Lottery s igns currently replaced? 

Response: All equipment referenced in this question is replaced based on 
the standards outlined in this RFP. Please see section 8.7, table 97 for 
requirements related to replacement due to wear and tear use. 

127. RFP Section 8.7 - Marketing Materials and Related Equipment. Table 97, Item 5, 
page 181. Since the Lottery already has instant ticket dispensers situated at the 
retailer, can the Lottery clari fy how many total dispenser facings are needed at 
conversion, and then how many dispenser facings are needed each contract year? 

Response: Please see the spreadsheet entitled "Retailer Equipment 
Detail" (previously provided) which includes dispenser counts related to 
the current retail profile. Future dispenser facing requirements will be 
determined based on Retailer base expansion. All instant ticket 
dispensers provided must be new. See section 8.7, table 97 for 
requirements related to replacement due to wear and tear use. The Texas 
Lottery is looking for innovative thinking and solutions. Proposers may 
offer solutions that vary from the current practice that they believe will 
further the Texas Lottery's vision , mission and core values. 

128. RFP Section 8.7 - Marketing Materials and Related Equipment, Table 97, Item 7, 
page 18 1. Who is respons ible financially for the purchase of Lottery-approved 
signage for the Successful Proposer's fl eet vehicles that are used in Texas? 

Response: The Successful Proposer would be financially responsible for 
this requirement of the Contract. 

129. RF P Section 8.7 - Marketing Materials and Re lated Equipment. Table 97, Item 7, 
page 18 1. Given that the Successful Proposer only "may be required" to provide 
and install Lottery-approved signage on its fleet vehicles, is it a correct 
assumption that no such arrangement exists with the Lottery's current Vendor? 

Response: The current Lottery Operator does provide signage for a 
portion of its fleet of vehicles. 

130. RF P Section 8.8 Research and Lottery Product Development General 
Question page 182. Will the Lonery provide copies of all research plans and 
project deliverables for the past two fi scal years (FY08 and FY09)? 

Response: The Texas Lottery conducts on-going and specific market 
research studies through its market research vendor. Project deliverables 
produced during FY '08 and FY '09 include the following: Monthly 
Tracking Studies, Quarterly Tracking Reports, October 2007 
Segmentation Study, October 2008 Segmentation Study, 2008 $2 
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Licensed Property Ticket Research , 2008 Opti-Mix $2 and $5 Scratch-Off 
Ticket Testing, and 2009 Texas Opti-Mix $1 and $2 Ticket Testing. Due to 
the voluminous nature of these reports, they will be provided upon request 
only. Please contact Angela Zgabay-Zgarba to request copies of the 
reports. 

131. RFP Section 8.8 - Research and Lottery Product Development. Table 100. Item 
12. page 183. Will the Lottery provide examples of the any direct mail campaigns 
conducted for the past two fi sca l years (FY08 and FY09)? 

Response: Please see Attachment Q131. 

132. RFP Section 8.8 - Research and Lottery Product Development. Table 100 Item 
13. page 183. Will the Lottery provide a li st of its current research and 
advertising vendors and the approximate amount spent with each for the past two 
calendar or fi scal years? 

Response : The current Lottery Operator is not involved in these 
Contracts. 

The Texas Lottery's Advertising Services Contract is a combined General 
and Minority Market Advertising Services contract between the Texas 
Lottery Commission , TracyLocke Partnership, LP and LatinWorks 
Marketing, L.P . TracyLocke Partnership, LP is responsible for the 
general market advertising services and LatinWorks Marketing, L.P. is 
responsible for the minority market advertising services. The advertising 
services expenditures for fiscal year 2008 were $30,719,000 and 
$29,481 ,600 in fisca l year 2009. 

Expenditures by fiscal year for each Texas Lottery advertising and 
research vendor are noted below: 

Advertising: FY 2008 FY 2009 

Tracy locke 30,643,596 29,418,355 

Research: FY 2008 FY 2009 

Ipsos-Reid 613,380 528,500 

The University of Texas 108,462 0 

University of Houston 50,000 50,000 

UT Center for Social Work 12,000 12,000 

Tracy locke 0 43,288 
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133. RFP Section 9.3 -Instant Ticket Delivery. Table lOS. Item 7. page 187. 
Currently. what percentage of de li veries is made on weekends? 

Response: Currently, deliveries are only made on weekends under special 
circumstances. The Texas Lottery is looking for innovative thinking and 
solutions. Proposers may offer solutions that vary from the current practice 
that they believe will further the Texas Lottery's vision , mission and core 
values. 

134. Attachment B. Financial Commitment and Responsibili ty. Page 209. Wi ll the 
Lottery please confinn if Attachment B must be submitted with a Proposer's 
Technical and/or Cost proposal (s)? 

Response: Attachment B must be submitted with the Technical Proposal. 

135. Attachment H Cost Proposal Evaluation orCost Proposal page 235. Are 
"Specified Options" included in the calculation ofa Bidder Cost proposal amount 
for the evaluation? 

Response: Please see the response to Question 56. 

136. Attachment K. Section 2.1.5. Marketing Research. Promotions and Lottery Sales 
Representatives. page 246. Will the Lottery define the acronym VFD in Table 
139? 

Wi ll the Lottery define " Programmable Sign" in Table 1391 

Response: VFD - Vacuum Fluorescent Display-- this is a small display 
panel attached to the back of the Retailer Sales Terminal that faces the 
customer and provides visual confirmation on the status of a ticket prize 
validation . 

Programmable Sign - scrol ling LED display that attaches to neon lottery 
signs and is currently updated via wireless communication . Please 
reference table 97, item 4. c) . 

57 

DOCUMENT REDACTED BY TLC -12-10-10 



AMENDMENTS TO RFP 

The following have been adopted by Amendment to the RFP, as permitted by 
Section 2.17 of the RFP. 

Amendment No. 2 

Glossary 

Backup Data Center 

Amendment No.3 

The back-up computer facility established in a separate LATA 
from the primary site located in the State of Texas, which is 
maintained and operated by the Successful Proposer. 

2.8.4 \Vith the exception of Part S, the Proposer shall submit one ( 1) signed origina l 
and twenty (20) copies of its Technical Proposal. For Part 5 only, the Proposer 
shall submit one (1) original and two (2) copies or all HSP required 
documentation. All Technical Proposals submitted must be bound in a three-ring 
binder, organized and arranged to correspond directly wi th the numbered sections 
of this RFP, and all pages must be numbered. For Parts I and 2 onl y, Proposers 
may provide a blanket acknowledgment and acceptance in lieu of a section-by
seclion response. For Parts 3 and 4, Proposers shall provide a section-by-section 
response to the RFP. For Part 5, Proposers sha ll follow the instructions for 
completing and submitting a HSP. For Parts 6 through 10, Proposers shall provide 
a section-by-section response fo r each Response Requirement Table. If a Proposer 
is claiming any part(s) of its Proposal is confidential, the Proposer must provide a 
detailed response to Section 1.9. A Proposer may not amend a commitment to 
comply with a spec ific section of thi s RFP by a later reference back to that 
section. 

Amendment No.4 

3. 13.3 Upon notification by the Texas Lottery to the Successful Proposer that the Texas 
Lottery objects to an employee based on a background investigation, the 
Successful Proposer shall prevent that employee from working on the Texas 
Lottery account and shall deny that employee access to the Texas Lottery 
systems. The Successful Proposer also agrees that the Texas Lottery may 
conduct background investigations of such persons at the expense of the 
Successful Proposer. 

Amendment No.5 

3. 15.4 The Successful Proposer must maintain the Proposer's System in a state of 
readiness for a period of ninety (90) Days after the tennination of the Successfu l 
Proposer's role as the operator of the Lottery Gaming System, if a di fferent 
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vendor has been chosen to replace the Successful Proposer as Lottery Operator. 
At any time during this ninety (90) Day period, the Texas Lottery may require the 
Successful Proposer to resume its role as the operator of the Lottery Gaming 
System for up to two (2) additional years. Exercising this right (i.e., the 90-day 
extension) sha ll not be construed as conferring any right or expectation for the 
Successfu l Proposer to cont inue operating under the Contract after the expiration 
of any such ninety (90) Day period. The Successful Proposer shall be entitled to 
compensation during the renewal period at the then-current contract rate, but 
only for transactions processed by the Successful Proposer's System. 

Amendment No. 6 

3.22.9 The Successful Proposer warrants that it will pay and agrees to pay any 
amount paid by the Texas Lottery and any costs incurred by the Texas 
Lottery as the result of and/or in connection with a misprinted On-Line 
Ticket. Altered tickets are not misprinted tickets. If an On-Line Ticket 
appears to be a winner in all respects (e.g., numbers shown on the ticket 
match the numbers selected in the drawing, no evidence of 
tampering/alteration, etc.), hut the host computer record does not match the 
data printed on the physical ticket, the Successful Proposer warrants that it 
will pay and agrees to pay any amount paid by the Texas Lottery and any 
costs incurred by the Texas Lottery as a result of and/or in connection with 
the misprinted ticket. 

Amendment No. 7 

3 .25.3 Ownership of Prior Rights by Ihe Successful Proposer. All property and tangib le 
or intangible items, including the Intellectual Property Rights therein, that were 
created, developed or owned by the Successful Proposer prior to the issuance of 
this RFP shall continue to be exclusively owned by the Successful Proposer, and 
the Texas Lottery shall have no ownership thereof, and no rights thereto, other 
than thc limited, non-exclusive right to usc such property or tangible or intangible 
items solely for the purposes set forth in thi s RFP or resu lting Contract, if any. 
All tangible and int.mgible items relating to the goods and/or services set 
forth herein or under the Contract. including the Intellectual Property 
Rights in those tangible or intangible items, that were created, developed or 
licensed by the Successful Proposer prior to the issuance of this RFP or the 
execution of the Contract, or during the term of the Contract, to the extent 
such tangible or intangible items are Ali iRtelieetl:lsi fJra!3eFl:") reiatiRg ta the 
gases anEl,lsr sep iees set ~Fl:h hereill sr I:lHeer the CSRH=aet, iHeil:leiHg the 
IRtl:!lll:!etlisl Prt:lf.1I:!R) Rights iR tht:lse gt:lt:lt:is tlHt:lIt:lr sl:!r. i el:!s, lhtll u ss erl:!ulet:i, 
eel;'elsfJee ar lieeRsees), the S1::leeessfl:ll PrafJsser fJriar ts the iss1::laeee sf this R....l:'p 
ar the e),eel:ltisR af the CaRtmet, sr eHriRg the teFA'l af the CaHH=aet, ta the e),teHt 
sl:leh iRtelleetua l fJr8fJeR) is not considered "works" as defined above, sha ll be, 
and are, licensed to the Texas Lottery on a non-exclusive, perpetual , irrevocable, 
royalty-free, worldwide basis, to allow the Texas Lottery or its designees to 
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provide, and continue to provide, the goods and services set forth herein or under 
the Contract, including after the expiration or termination of the Contract. 

Amendment No. 8 

3.44 DISCLOSURE OF SANCTIONS AND LIQUIDATED DAMAGES 

The Proposer must include in its Proposal a complete list of all sanctions and 
liquidated damages assessed against the Proposer during the last five (5) years 
prior to submiss ion of the Proposal for the following; (i) a single sanctionable 
event under any contract that occurred five (5) times or more in a rolling 
calendar year or (ii) any sanction or liquidated damage under any contract 
totaling fifty thousand dollars ($50,000) or morc. The Proposer must also 
include in its Proposal a complete account of all goods or selVices provided in 
consideration of contractual sanctions or liquidated damages that would have been 
assessed, including the juri sdiction, the reason for the penalty or liquidated 
damages and the goods or services provided in lieu of the assessment. This is a 
continuing disclosure requirement, any sanctions or liquidated damages assessed 
after submiss ion of the Proposal Illust be di sclosed in writing within fifteen ( 15) 
Days of its occurrence. The Texas Lottery reserves the right to request an updated 
report of all sanctions andlor liquidated damages assessed against the Successful 
Proposer during the term of any Contract resulting from this RFP. 

Amendment NO. 9 

3.58.2 The cite reference to 3.58.4 in the last line of this section is incorrect. The 
correct cite is Section 3.58.5. 

Amendment No.1 0 

3.66 IMMIGRATION 

The Successful Proposer represents and warrants that it shall comply with the 
requirements of the Immigration Reform and Control Act of 1986, the 
Immigration Act of 1990 and the Illegal Immigrant Refonn and Immigrant 
Responsibi li ty Act of 1996 regarding employment of any individual who wi ll 
perform labor or services under any Contract entered into as a result of this RFP ... 
J::leetrenie aREI In f.'eRl1atien Rese1:lrees Aeeessieilit) StaAEIarEls, As ReEJ1:lireEi e) I 
TAC Chapter 213 (Applieable ts State AgeAey BREt mstitutisAS sf lIigher 
efi1:leatieR PHFehases ORly). 

3.67 Electronic and Information Resources Accessibil ity Standards, As 
Required by 1 TAC Chapter 213 (Applicable to State Agency and 
Institutions of Higher Education Purchases Only). 

3.67. 1 Effective September I, 2006 state agencies and institutions of higher education 
shall procure products which comply with the State of Texas Accessibili ty 
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requirements for Electronic and Information Resources specified in I TAC 
Chapter 213 when such products are available in the commercial marketplace or 
when such products are developed in response to a procurement sol icitation. 

3.67.2 The Successful Proposer sha ll provide OlR with the URL to its Voluntary Product 
Accessibility Template (VPAT) for reviewing compliance with the State of Texas 
Accessibility requirements (based on the federal standards established under 
Section 508 of the Rehab ili tation Act), or indicate that the product/serv ice 
accessibility information is available from the General Services Administration 
" Buy Accessible Wizard" (http://www.buyaecessible.gov). Proposers not listed 
with the «Buy Accessible Wizard" or supplying a URL to their VPA T must 
provide OlR with a report that addresses the same accessibi lity criteria in 
substantively the same format. Additional information regarding the "Buy 
Accessib le Wizard" or obtaining a copy of the VPA T is located at 
http://www.sect ion508.gov/. 

The remaining sections in Part 3 have been rc-numbercd accordingly. Please sec the 
section numbers with title below. There were no changes to the sections, other than the 
numbers. 

3.68 FALSE STATEMENTS; BREACH OF REPRESENTATIONS 

3.69 LIMITATION ON AUTHORITY; NO OTHER OBLIGATIONS 

3.70 PROPOSER ASSIGNMENT 

3.71 CODE OF CONDUCT 

3.72 CONTACT WITH TEXAS LOTTERY COMMISSION 

3.73 INCIDENTS AND ANOMALIES 

3.74 ATTACHMENT OF THIRD PARTY SYSTEMS, TERMINALS OR 
PRODUCTS 

3.75 RECORDS RETENTION 
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Amendment No. 11 

3.60.34 Failure to Implement Change or Release Management ~ 

Section Descrip tion A moun t 
7.7 - Change and (fthe Successful Proposer fails to implement any change or $25.000 per 
Release release to the Lottery Gaming System as required under incident 
Management Section 7.7. Ii ilhsHl 8R iReitieRl, the Successful Proposer may 

be assessed sanctions. 
Trieeer Examples Measure Performance Tare;et 
(Heident e8\iSeei ~)' Change or Release Incidents 100% of Changes and Releases 
not implemented in accordance with implemented as required in Section 
Section 7.7 7.7 I~' itl:iel::lt lReiEieFll 

Maximum 
Formula Sanction Exceptions 
Total Sanction - Change or Release Not Implemented as None Texas Lottery 
Required .~' ilh IReieleR~ ... Sanction Per Incident Written Approval 
Measure In terva l Report in2 Period Measurement Basis 
Per Incident None Incidents attributable to a Change or Release 

Implementation 

Amendment No. 12 

3.60.45 Failun' t" Resoh L' a Loltcr~ "on-Sall's and/or \ alidation Equipment 
Pruhll'lII nithin thl' Specilil'd Tillll'rrallll' 

Section Description Amount 
7. 12.2 - Insta ll ation, The fai lure of the Successfu l Proposer to $100 per Day or 
Relocation and Removal resolve all Lottery non-sa les and/or validation part of a Day until 
U 8.7 - Marketing equipment problems and return the equipment equipment is 
Material and Related to seIVice within three (3) Days o[ notificalion retumed to seIVice 
Equipment may result in the Successfu l Proposer being 

assessed sanctions. 
Trie:l?:er Examples Measure Perfo r mance T are:et 
Retailer Hotline, Automated Alert Response 100% Response and Resolution to 
from Incident Management System Time Retailer Service Call s On Time 

Maximum 
Formula Sanction Except ions 
Number of Days Past Due - Dateffime of Return to Service - None Texas Lottery 
3 Days (72 hours) Written 
Total Sanction = Number of Days Past Due x Sanct ion Per Day Approval 
Measure In terval Report ing Period Measurement Basis 
Per Incident Monthly Incident Reporting, Retailer Hot li ne 
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Amendment No. 13 

3.60.52 Retailer Satisfaction 

Section Descrip tion A mount 
8.4. 1 - Retailer (fthe Successful Proposer rails to meet its annual reta il er $100,000 If 
Visit sati sfaction target as required in Section 8.4.1 and 6f as set by Lower 

the Texas Lottery, the Successful Proposer may be assessed Than 
sanctions. Target 

Tri'=!2:cr Examples Measure Performance Tan~:et 

Retai ler CSffi!9iaiRts, e3[eeJ3tisA Customer .J..OO!¥O Meets, or exceeds annual 
Rep8Rs Sati sfaction Retailer Satisfaction Target of 90% 
Retailer Research Surv~_Results 

Maximu m 
For mula Sanction Exceptions 
Customer Sati sfaction Avg. Rating sf ClJstemer Surreys None Texas 
in a QH8Fler Lottery 
The Number" of Retailer"s Responding "Good" or Written 
"'Excellent" to the Retailer Satisfaction Question Divided Approval 
by the Total Number of Retailers Surveyed 
If TaFgst Customer Sat isfaction CHst81T1Sr £atisfae ti s A > < 
90% () then Total Sanction = $ 100,000 
Measure In terval R eporting Period Measurement Basis 

Annually Annua lly Retailer Sati sfaction Surveys 
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Amendment No. 14 

3.60.62 Failure to Tirncl~ Prmidc .\ccuratc -\nnuallnstant Ticket Imcnt()r~ Report 

Section Descrip tion Amount 
9.7 Warehouse The fa ilure of the Successful Proposer to timely file, wi thin $1,000 per 
and Legisti es two (2) Working Days of the Texas Lottery's August 31st Day or part 
Distribution fiscal year end, an accurate annua l instant ticket inventory ofa Day 
General report, including the status of all inventory by game and by 
Requirements pack, may resu lt in the Successful Proposer being assessed 

sanctions for each Day that the report is not timely fil ed or 
accurate. 

Tri22cr Examples Measure Performance Tan::et 
Annual Inven tory Reports Not Accuracy, 100% Accurate & On Time Instant 
Received, Inaccuracies Detected in Elapsed Time Ticket Inventory Report 
Annua l Inventory Report 

Maximu m 
Formula Sanction ExcePtions 
Timel iness None None 
Days Past Due = Date Accurate Reports Filed - August 31st 
- 2 Working Days 

Total Sanction = Days Past Due x Dai ly Sanct ion 

Accuracy 
Total Sanction = Date Accurate Reports Filed - Date of 
Notification of Inaccuracies x Daily Sanction 
Measure In terva l Reporting Period Measurement Basis 
Per Incident Annually Annual Inventory Report rece ived by Texas 

Lottery and time stamped (physical) or Receive 
Date and Time (Texas Lottery Email) 
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Amendment No. 15 

"'; :-n 64 Failure to Provide a Detailed Conversion Plan within 45 Days of 
Contract Execution 

Section Description Amount 
10.1 - The failure orthe Successful Proposer to provide a detai led $1,000 per 
Conversion Plan Convers ion Plan within 9(} 45 days of Contract execution may Day or part 

result in the Successful Proposer being assessed sanctions for ofa Day 
each Day that the detailed conversion plan is not provided. 

Trigger Examples Measure Performance Target 
Missed Deliverables Elapsed Time On-time submission of detai led 

Conversion Plan 
Maximu m 

Formula Sanction Exceptions 
Number of Days Overdue - Task Completion Day None None 

Total Sanction = Number of Days Overdue x Sanction 
per Day 
Measure In terval Reportin 2: Period Measurement Basis 
Per Day none Receipt of Detai led Conversion Plan 

Amendment No. 16 

4.7.2(2) The cite references to item 1.1 in this section are incorrect, the correct cite is 
4.7.2(1). 

4 .7.2(3) The cite reference to item 4.7.1 (2) in the third line of this section is incorrect, 
the correct cite is 4.7.2(1). 

Amendment No. 17 

4.8. 1 The Texas Lottery Commission may ini tiate investigations into the backb'TOunds of 
any (a) Apparent Successful Proposer; (b) any of the Apparent Successful 
Proposer's officers, directors, investors, owners, partners and other principals, as 
more particularl y described in Texas Government Code Ann. § 466.155, 
(collectively, Apparent Successful Proposer Principals); (c) any of Apparent 
Successful Proposer' s employees; (d) any of Apparent Successful Proposer's 
subcontractors, or subcontractors' officers, directors, investors, owners, partners, 
principals or employees (collectively, Subcontractor Personnel) ; or (e) any other 
associates of the Apparent Successful Proposer it deems appropriate. The Texas 
Lottery Commission may also request background infonnation for a spouse, child, 
brother, sister or parent residing as a member of the same household in the 
principal place of residence of the Apparent Successful Proposer, any Apparent 
Successful Proposer Principals, or Apparenl Successful Proposer employees 
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described above. Such background investigations may include fingerprint 
identification by the Texas Department of Public Safety, the Federal Bureau of 
Invest igation, and any other law enforcement agency. The Texas Lottery may 
reject a Proposal and/or tenninate any Contract resulting from this RFP based 
solely upon the results of these background investigations. The Apparent 
Successful Proposer shall pay all costs incurred by the Texas Lottery 
Commission in conducting the initial vendor background investigation. To 
facilitate the payment of these costs, the Successful Proposer shall post funds 
with the Texas Lottery from which the Texas Lottery can draw to pay for 
such costs and shall replenish those funds, as requested by the Texas Lottery 
should the Texas Lottery determine that additional funds are required. 

Amendment No. 18 

Table 17. Facilities Support Services Requirements 

Detail Requirements 

Data Center 

21. The Successful Proposer's Primary Data Center IllUSt be located wi thin Austin, Texas Ihe Slate 
efTellfts. The Backup Data Center must be established in a separate Local Access and Transpon 
Area (LATA) from the primary site and located in the State of Texas. 
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Amendment No. 19 

Table 64. Sales Terminals and Related System Sales Equipment Requirements 

Detail ReQuirements 
Hardware 

3. The Successfu l Proposer must provide standard and mid-range Reta il er Sales Termina ls that 
incorporate the latest technology and meet Texas Lottery requirements. All Retailer Sa les 
Termina ls must print and validate On-Line Tickets, va lidate Instant Tickets. perform Instant 
Ticket pack management , and accounting and reporting functions , and meet all other 
requirements as identified in this RFP and the Contract. Retailer Sales +eFlfliBais Ifll::lsl SI;IP138Ft 

e.<istiRg eleelr8Aieall) iRteofatea cash Elisl3ensefS I::Isea 8) Te.'8s bene", RetaileF5 . fer enal'fll3ie , 
seine Retailers .:HiI i>'!!:! +iElel ~8fe5 feF IAisj3HFfl8se. 

Functionality 

15. All Retailer Sales Tenninals must provide a customer-oriented ¥ttiee display (flat-panel monitor) 
to communicate the outcome of each transaction conducted on the temlinal to include: 

a) Sales transaction data; 

b) Validation data to include winning, non-winning and pri ze amount data, if appl icable; and 

c) Displays must also be capable of broadcasting video resident on the tenninal , downloaded from 
the Contcnt Managcment System, between terminal transactions. 

In retailer environments, where -¥i6e6 displays (flat-panel monitors) capable of video broadcast 
cannot be deployed, a customer oriented-¥idee display must provide: 

a) Sales transaction data; and 

b) Val idation data to include winning, non-winning and prize amount data, if applicable. 

e~ Qisl318)slul;!st 81ss ee eSl3s!:lle sf:ereseesstillg ieee resieeBI SA IAe lerlftinal , ee nleaeee FrSlft 
IAe GsllIen! ~4aAagelfteAI S)Slen~, !:lei een lerlftiAsllRmsselisBs. 

Amendment No. 20 

Table 65. Sales Terminals and Related System Sales Equipment Response Requirements 

Specified and Invited Options 

j, As 8 £j'leeif:ied OJ'ltisn, tAe Prspsser Iftl::lst siler aA al::ltslftaleel in eSl::lnter liel,el eliSj'leAsing I::IBil. 
TAe PrSf38Ser sAall tAsrsl:lgAly deseriee tAe design, installatisn, maintenanee aRd HtnetisA61ity sr 
the t:tnil. [r the TeJlas Leiter) eller-sises this el3tien , the Pr-el3eser- mt:lst install ana main tain the -
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Amendment No. 21 

Table 84. Retailer Visit Requirements 

Detail Reauirements 

12. The Successful Proposer must visit each Retailer at least once duri ng each two (2) week sales 
cycle regardless of sa les level or geographic region. As the Retai ler network increases, the 
Successful Proposer shall be required to increase the siaffing requi rements to maintain the 
visitation and support respons ibility requirements. The Successful Proposer must submit the 
sales cycle schedule 10 the Texas Lottery on an ann ual basis for each Slate fiscal year no later 
than August I each year. 

Amendment No. 22 

Table 92. Retailer Contests and Retailer-based Player Promotions Requirements 

Detail Requirements 

18. On or before May 31 51 each year, the Successful Proposer must provide an alillual incenti ve 
program plan, based on the State fiscal year, for Retailers for approval by the Texas Lottery. 
Proposed changes to this plan must be submitted to the Texas Lottery fo r prior approva l. 

Amendment No. 23 

Table 94. Promotional Events and Retailer Promotions Requirements 

Successful 
Roles and Responsibilities Proposer TlC 

Retailer Promotions 

19. Approves promotional items and proposed promotions and 
detem,ines and provides the number of promotiona l tickets to be X 
used for each promotion 

20. Procures and coordinates the deployment (statewide) of all 
X 

equipment and materials needed to support each promotion 

Amendment No. 24 

Table 95. Promotional Events Response Requirements 

Res onse Re Ulrements 
3. The Proposer must identify the entire promotions program team whose full-time responsibi lity 

will be to develop and run the statewide promotions plan. Proposers mllst provide detailed 
FeSliAleS job descriptions for all the promotions team members e lit liRiRg their eJlflerieRee 
ee ne l:l eliRg premelienel aeti .. ities . The Proposer must descri be its lise of fu ll-time dedicated team 
members working on the program and must also iden tify any other staff who wi ll ass ist wi th the 
promotions plan, describing how the team wi ll be coordinated and tra ined to maximize the 
benefit s of the program. 
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Amendment No. 25 

Tab le 122. Conversion Plan Requirements 

Roles and Respons ibilit ies Successful 
TLC Proposer 

10. Provide support and assistance during transition to replacement 
X provider or conversion to new Lottery Gaming System 

Amendment No. 26 

Table 84. Retaiter Visit Requirements 

Detail ReQuirements 

18. LSRs must meet Retailer satisfaction targets as set by the Texas Lottery. Annual Retailer 
satisfaction levels, as measured by the Texas Lottery through a statewide sampling 
of Retailers regarding LSR service and performance, shall be equal to or greater 
than 90%. The Successful Proposer shall provide correclivl;! action plans 10 the Texas Lottery 
to address mi ssed Retailer satisfaction targets. 

Amendment No. 27 

Texas Lottery-Specified Options 

Proposers are required to submit specifications and pricing for the following Specified 
Options. The uni t cost is a one-time fee that is for the use of the equipment or services 
for the remainder of the Contract. 

a. In eounter T iellet Dispensing Unit (SeetisR 7.1 2). THe Prspsser mHst sffer an 
aHtsmated iA eSl:ffiter tiel(et dispensing Hnit. TRe Prspsser sRall tRsrsHgRly 
deseribe the elesigR, iRstallatisR, maiRteRaRee aReI Rl:RetisRality sf tRe l!Rit. If the 
Te?(as Lettery e?(ereises tRis Sj3 tiSR, tRe SHeeessful PrS j3sser HUlst iRstall aAd 
maintain tRe HAits. 

J?:ri ee J?:er URil: 

b. In-lane Termi nals (Section 7.12). The Proposer must offer an in-lane tenninal 
designed for use in multi-lane stores such as supennarkets. The Proposer shall 
thoroughly describe the design, installation, maintenance and functionality of the 
tenninal. I f the Texas Lottery exercises this option, the Successful Proposer must 
install and maintain the tenninals. 

PFi ee Per t!ait: 

Price for up to 500 Units: ___ _ 

Price for 501 -1000 Units: ____ _ 

Price for 1001- 1500 Units: ___ _ 
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Price for \50 \-2000 Units: ___ _ 

Greater than 200 I Uni ts: ____ _ 
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2 Year 5ales Projection tv 2010-2011 Att<lcnment to 097 

2-Year Sales Estimate 

Texas - 2010/ 2011 

~ 

Fiscal year 2010 Fiscal year 2011 
--

wklyavg #ofwks total sales wklyavg total sales 

INSTANT 53,488,225 52 2,781,387,725 54,378,290 2,827,671,105 

LOTTO 3,845,250 52 199,953,021 3,733,720 194, 153,446 

PICK3 5,443,550 52 283,064,609 5,647,074 293,647,872 
CASH5 1,282,715 52 66,701,204 1,213,462 63,100,048 

TX2STEP 894,497 52 46,513,860 846,204 44,002,606 
MEGA 4,329,308 52 225,124,033 4,073,113 211,801,900 
DAlLY4 984,598 52 51,199,071 1,021,410 53,113,310 

POWERBALL 3,645,833 30 109,375,000 3,706,501 192,738,074 

TOTAL 3,763,318,522 74,619,776 3,880,228,362 
WeeklyA\lg. 72,371,510 74,619,776 
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Texas Lottery Commission 
EXAMPLE · Daily Sales Report 

Wednesday, 211712010 

Attachment to Q98a 

Name Game Price Total Amount Name Game Price Total Amount 
$500,000,000 BLOCKBU 1114 20 669000 SUPER SET FOR LIFE 1024 20 5020 
$50,000 PAYOUT 1215 5 549325 SUPER BLACK JACK 1200 1 4178 
$1 ,000,000 GOLD RUSH 1068 20 538500 WHArs YOUR NUMBER? 1157 1 3560 
GOLD BAR BONANZA 1211 10 485810 MERRY MONEY 1190 5 2605 
MATCH & WIN 1199 3 362604 711112021 1141 1 1900 
PRECIOUS PEARL 7'S 1204 7 286167 Cadillac Escalade C 1194 5 1295 
$50,000 CASH 1212 5 283810 FIESTA 1171 2 938 
SET FOR LIFE 1057 10 281080 CASH FRENZY 1162 5 470 
MONTHLY BONUS 1164 5 277290 PURE GOLD 1158 5 105 
BONUS CASHWORD 1155 3 252816 MONOPOLY 1177 1 -42 
CASINO ROYALE 1168 5 240050 LUCKY SLOTS 1133 1 -92 
BONUS BREAK THE BANK 1196 5 232955 LUCKY 13 1203 2 -106 
BREAK THE BANK 1047 2 229858 9'S IN A LINE 1156 1 ·110 
BONUS WORD CROSSWO 1263 3 216648 250000 BINGO 1022 10 -180 
BIG MONEY BINGO 1069 5 186535 LOTERLA TEXAS 1152 3 -588 
WEEKLY GRAND 1153 2 172718 $75,000 CASINO 1051 7 -889 
$140,000,000 EXTREME 1101 50 170000 MERRY MILLIONAIRE 1193 20 -4420 
LOTERIA TEXAS 1259 3 167007 
THE MONEY GAME 1213 1 148504 
$50,000 CASH WINFALL 1184 5 141450 
TRIPLER 1208 3 138699 
DALLAS COWBOYS 1261 5 135300 
CASH BINGO 1198 2 122750 
FUTBOL 1195 2 120094 
FIND THE 9'S 1264 1 115242 
FIVE STAR CASH 1182 5 114510 
SPICYTS 1207 1 94318 
SUPER DEUCES 1209 2 91208 
8 SECONDS LUCKY 1170 2 90750 
SPARKLING 7'S 1191 7 90615 
$250,000 Bingo 1090 10 89590 
WILD 10'S 1260 10 88660 
TREASURE 1159 2 82194 
CRAZY CASH 1169 1 81515 
JINGLE JUMBO BUCKS 1192 10 75760 
LUCKY SLOTS 1210 1 74040 
POT O'GOLD TRIPLER 1216 1 68700 
VETERANS CASH 1218 2 66856 
SUPER WILD 8'S 1172 5 65350 
DOUBLE DOUBLER 1206 1 51879 
VETERANS WINNINGS 1265 2 49500 
WINTER WINNINGS 1189 5 45875 
BEST OF 7'S 1083 7 32879 
STOCKING STUFFER 1188 3 28248 
LUCKY RIDER 1185 5 28060 
BONUS BREAK THE BANK 1005 5 26355 
TRIPLE IT 1202 3 25446 
HOUSTON TEXANS 1262 5 23370 
MONTHLY BONUS 1062 5 20325 
MONEY TREE 1183 2 13790 
CASH BINGO 1102 2 12568 ONLINE DAILY SALES SUMMER SPECTACULAR 1166 10 11500 
TAKES 1178 5 11045 Lotto Texas 1,494,514.00 
SNOW DOUGH 1187 2 10948 Mega Millions 147,259.00 
HAPPY HOLIDAYS! 1186 1 10808 Mega Millions - Megaplier 29,806.00 
DIAMONDS & GOLD 1179 2 10206 Cash Five 201,572.00 
BIG PAYOUT 1201 10 6760 Texas Two Step 42,569.00 
CASH BOUNTY 1205 1 6440 Pick 3 886,936.00 

Daity4 189,503.50 
Powerba lt 498,041 .00 

Confidential 
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Texas Lottery Commission 
EXAMPLE - Sales District Comparison 
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Attachment to Q98c 

f ota l Sa les 

$89~ 

i;§i , 

~ 
$3~~9, ' 3 1 .0C 
$01 , , 

,740.00 

$, , , $~ 

$58,7 
,~ 

$6~~ 
$/U, , 

$179~ 
$189, ''5.79\ 

$1 , , 

$~ 

$104,11 1, ~ 
$1~: 

Data for week-ending 2-13-2010. Comparison of the first 24 weeks of TLC FY 2009 and 
the first 24 weeks of TLC FY 2010. 
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Have You 
Played 

Ii 
- TE XRS
LOTTERY 

Today? 

o COROPLAST SIGNS 
· 32 in. x48 in. 

• Kit includes zip ties and hanging hardware 

• Generic sign shown. Other versions available: 
"Have You I-'Iayed roday", Scratch-ofts, Cash Five, 
Lotto Texas, Texas Two Step and Mega Millions. 

o CURB SIGN COVER 
· 27 1/4 in. x 35 1/2 in. 

• 2-sided with grommets 

• Doubles as banner 

• Available messages: ~Have You Played Today,' 
"Play Here" and "Winner Sold Here." 
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f) CURB SIGN 
· 24 in. x 36 in. 

• Metal 

• Spring-hinged for wind resistance. 

· 2-sided 

o WANGING 
BRACKET SIGN 

·18in.x 24 in. 

• Aluminum with brackets for hanging 

• 2-sided 



o PUMP TOPPER 
FRAME 

• Metal 
• Th ree sizes available: 

- 20in. x12 in. 
- 23 1/2 in. x 12 1/2 in. 
- 16in. x13 in. 

• Adheres with double-sided tape (included) 

-TEX Y 
LOTTE 

o WALL SIGN 
· 36 in. x 48 in. 

• Metal 

• Weight - 6 Ibs. 
• Four pre-dri lled holes for hang ing 

• Masonry anchors included 
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Attachment to 0101 

Don't Drive Awl)' 
Before You Jlley! 

o PUMP TOPPER 
INSERT 

· 20 in. x 12 in. 
• Styrene 

• Various messages 



o BROCHURE HOLDER 
·10in. xSin.x4in. 

· 4-tiered 

• Acrylic 

S 1 0 ..-
MILLION 

o .JACKPOT 
WINDOW SIGN 

· 12 in. x 18 in. 

• Spi ral number pad insert 

· Suction cups for mounting and chains 
for hanging 

• Acrylic 
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e DIRECTIONAL ARROW 
·10in.x20in. 

· 2-sided 

• Hole at top for hanging 

s 000 
MILl/ON 

.~imm. ··-· -. 
~ 

o .JACKPOT 
AWARENESS SIGNAGE 
JackpotTerminal Sign 

· 7 1/4 in. x 6 1/2 in. 

• Mounts to terminal or register 

• Spiral number pad insert 

Jackpot Alert Stickers 

· 3 In. peel-off backing • Wri teable surface 



.1"., 
1.111(111' 

o MESSAGE BOARD 
· 20in.x30in. 

• Dry-erase surface 

• One dry-erase pen included 

• Blue metal frame 

o MINI BillBOARD 
T-STAND 

·81 /2 in. x 13 1/2 in. with a 2 1/2 in. base 

• Acrylic 
• Freestanding display with top load 
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o MINI BillBOARD 
WALL HOLDER 

· B1/2in.xl' in. 

• Acrylic 

·4 1/4 in. fold over at bottom and 2 114 in. 
fold over at top with side load 

• Includes double-sided tape 

o NEON SIGN 
· 23 in. x 23 1/2 in. x4 3/4 in. 

• · Play Lottery· halo painted Yellow-Gold 

• State outline halo painted Horizon Blue 

• Requires 120V, 60Hz AC electrical outlet 



Ii) WINNING NUMBER 
RESULTS WOlDER 

·51/2 in. diameter x 91/2 in. tall 

• Acrylic 
• 4-sided with dual slots 

for playslips and game results 
• Available Spring 2009 
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• Movable display 
• Jackpot and Amber Alert messages 

~ "VFD" - VACUUM 
FLUORESCENT DISPLAY 

• Displays validated ticket status and p rize amount 

m TERMINAL BACK PLATE 
• Plexi frame and cover 

• Clip-on mount 

• Changeable insert 

® PLAYSTATION 
·70 in. x24 in.x 15 in. 

• Writing surface 45 in. high 

• Storage space below 



«I TICKET 
DISPENSERS 

• 6 in. x 91 /4 in. x 7 1/8 in. 

• Modular units for secure stacking 

• Each ticket dispenser has a lock and 2 keys 

,-u.-.. ",-

.,'~~ .. ~~ 
i ~ \ 

-" ...... " .. 
m WI Ill! 1AU.1J~ M, 

-.t".IIIfJ"'l --_ ... - .... -"._'.'-' _._-
It) CLERK STICKER 

·3 in. round 
• Peel-off backing 

• Various messages 
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~ "WE PAY" SIGN 
• 10 in. x 12 in. 

• Styrene 

• Two holes for hanging 

• Two-sided Spanish/English 



We provide retai lers with four standard in-store promotions to help keep 
selling Texas Lottery games fun for you, your customers and em ployees. 

Visit the Retailers page on our Web site www.txlottery.org for additional information 
or contact your Lottery Sales Rep to design a player promotion for your store. 

SECOND-CHANCE 
DRAWINGS 
Players with a non-winning ticket get a second 
chance with the Texas lottery w hen they 
participate in a retailer 's second-chance drawing. 

LONE STAR SPIN 
Every player is a winner when they purchase 

tickets for a chance to spin the wheel. 
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CUSTOMER 
APPRECIATION DAY 
Add extra entertainment to your Grand Opening 
or Anniversary Sale when you sell tickets and spin 
the wheel at the promotional trailer. 

• • 
• 

• 

If We Don't Ask! 

ASK FOR THE SALE 
Train your employees to ALWAYS ask for the sa le! 



Ii 
- TE XHS
LOTTERY 

Official Texas LoneI)' Web Site 
www.txlonery.org 

Texas Lottery Cwtomer Service I-8OQ..J 75-6886 

Copyright 0 2008 Texa<i lottery Commission All nghrs reserved. 
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Allachme!1t to 0107 
Texas Lottery Commission 

Retailer Contests and Retailer-based Player Promotions 
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Texas Lottery Commission 
FY08 Promotional Events 
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Attachment to Q112a 

. 01 u a)", Type of Promotion 

, 
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Lester Meier 
, 

Texas l ottery Commission 
FY09 Promotional Events 

Attactvnent to Q112b 
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Size: 

Glass: 

ATTACHMENT 

NEON SIGN SPECIFICATIONS 

Overal l size of sign is 23.07"H x23.60"W x4.75"D 

" Play" is 8mm White Halo painted yellow gold. 
" Lottery" is 8mm White Halo painted ye llow gold. 
"State Outline" unit is 10mm Horizon Blue. 
All glass is annealed. 

Electrodes: Three sets of I3mm 2-1 /4". 

Attachmenllo Q123 

Frame: Welded 18-1/2" of .125" x .375" metal frame wire with a black powder coated finish. 
There are (8) 2.75" 90 degree turns with window bumpers. 
There are 16 ri veted tube supports. 
There is one 16-gauge wall bracket and 2 backward projecting legs for hangi ng and 
setting purposes. The bracket and legs are powder coated. 

Construct ion: Built to UL specifications and must carry the UL label for sign constmction. 

Transfonner: Built to UL 2161 specifications. Must weigh less than 2 pounds and feature secondary 
ground fau lt intcrruption, ovcr vo ltage interrupt ion, immcdiatc shutdown on error, anti 
bubbl ing and anti-mercury migration circuitry and have short/open circu it protect ion. 

Packaging: Cartons are to be 200# test corrugated with foam inserts to ensure safe shipping. The 
packaging is to be 1ST A tested. The date of production is to appear on each un it. Other 
customer required identification would be specified. 

Shipping: Guarantee safe delivery to fi rst destination. 

Quality: A Quality Control person is required at the production facil ity and a quality program 
must be in place. Cosmetics are an important factor; consequen tly, utmost care must be 
taken in the manufacture of the individual parts so that they do not display unsightly 
blemishes. Suppl ier must guarantee proper manufacturing and assembly. color match. 
proper copy and strict adherence to any and all of the specifications and requirements. 

PROGRAMMABLE SIGNS AND WIRELESS SERVICE 
SPECIFICA TlONS 

Specifications for Everbright LED (Part No. 10362113) 

a. 80 x 7 High Brightness Amber LED message di splay 
b. One line of 13 characters 
c. 2. 1" character s ize 
d. Memory capac ity - 32K Ram Standard 
e. Operating Temperature - 0 to 50 degrees C 
f. Includes 120 V AC In-line power adapter 
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Attachment to Q123 

Information Redacted 
g. §SS2.101/ 466.022/ SS2.139 
h. Anodi zed aluminum enclosure 
I. Special mounting brackets to mount to bottom of Texas Lottery Neon sign 

Specifications to Supply Wireless Data Services and Wireless Reception Devices for Electronic 
Message Centers 

a. Data services shall be deli vered via satell ite to a wireless device attached to the electronic 
message center 

b. 

c. Data services shall be provided 24 hou rs pe r day, seven days a week 
d. 
e. 

f. Data services supplier shall warranty wireless services for the enti re duration of the data 
services contract 
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\NITH GREAT ODDS! 

Top Prize Roll-Down 
If there is not a ticket that 

matches all five numbers drawn 
to win the 1st prize, the money 
will roll down to the 2nd prize! 

Buy $5 or more 
worth of Cash Five 
and receive a $1 
Instant Cash Five 
Scratch-OH 
ticket for FREE! 

Overall Odds 1 in 8 
Cash FIVe gives you the best overall 
odds of any Texas lotterf on-line game. 
With such great odds, today could be 
your lucky day! Choose 5 numbers 
from 37 or ask for a Quick Pick. 

Nightly Drawings 
Cash Five drawings are held 

MondilY through Saturday at 
10:12 p.m. Check your numbers 

at www.txlottery.org 

the ~ odd. oI ........ ~ OIly P'-- '" /lie 1 ... _, Cosh F, ... ocrol<:I>-oH s-e _ 'iIl2.63. Including br.a~_ ottd ft .. hr~" p'iz •• 
Smkh.JI ~ cIosHtg ptOCedut" ... U &.g;,. w'- on lop ~,..... been c .... ....d A scraf<:lK>fIgo .... "10)' (o<>/i_ '" be sold _ 0"'" or/lop pnz..,..... bHn ciu,,,,..j 

For j~ obour cIoiming ptizw or ptizIN onody ck>m..J. _ ; ).eII or aJI ,·800·375-6886. To "'-)'CXIt odd.." ~ /rom fuMe TuelJ~"'" 
1IIOiIIII9J, ~ coli 1-600-371000 or emoJ. ~_S<!I.ictll!'l f ,.WIII hUll. C 2008 T!MOI Loa.ty Commiuion. Ali fighb ..... ..-l P~AY RESPON~ Sty 

h. prlz. 

2nd l'I"in 

3td prize 

h'l'I"lz. 

2nd prize 

3td ptlze 

Maleh E;n ......... I.d P .... ". Odd. of W.nn,n" 

S of S 

4 o f 5 

3 of 5 

5 of 5 

4 o f S 

3 of 5 

Top Prlz. 

5 123 "· 

511 ,..,. 

1: 43S,897 

1 :2.724 

1.88 

1: 435.897 

1:2 ,72 4 

1:88 
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$1 Instant Cash Five 
Scratch-Off* 

with a $5 Cash Five purchase. 
R""'" this coupon it ill)' TfUS Lott~ nttiMr. 

~"""AII911S110, lOO3 ,.~,. "'""" 
loIltfJ d.-_ ... ,.lrrIs \.ontfJ 1eIf-_ ........ 
!MI" eM! til 'III1I1InIJ i •• CG5tIfMt¥f 1 ell\ltm_ 
W 1I1'1*'S".'" oIdtr 10 P\IIdIM. T(X6lG1\1!!y 11< . ... 

cw, onr 111 flU 1O'.,!H11,....1I(tft '""~ 

'If tilt SlIlsUM W fl'fII1icbt(pllt '1m) ls _aWIt. 
I~S'ICI., .... 1icbt..,M~ 



3:1:1 

POBox 16630 
Austin, TX 78761-6630 

PRSATSTD 
us POSTAGE 

PAlO 

T"", """"" 
Commissioo 

Texas Lottery Player 

- --- ~- -------.---- - ---- --,--
I'SI_!~'~' , 

'1Sl6LO£~£ 

[11[111][1111 ml[ II~ I[ 
l OO-'l!ilOOOL -60M 

DOCUMENT REDACTED BY TLC -12-10-10 

®hH31101 
· SUX31-



The Texas lottery also offers other games with exciting top 
prizes. Try playing Monthly Bonus, set for Life, or the 

new $20 game Super Set for life, which offers a 
top prize of $7.5 million paid out over 15 years! 

(...u. tile,. , ... of 5 WEEKLY GRAND 

Redeem _~ .. ..,,~l..rIIter.,e ...... 

Coupon gOOll.II,oUI" J.lr 5, 2001. 110' rI

Melllloble" Teus Lottery a.11II tentelS or II 
,_ Lottefy seII-MfVIce 1ImIInIII. Dm'III odds 
ofwiming any prize .. WteklJ GrJIId "1)27 are 1 
In 3.91 r~ break_ prizes). 0wer1III odds 
01 winnIng.tIp Pf\ft .. lin I.Q,OOO. loUt be 

18 Of okIer IG buy • lew LoIl8fY IIckIIt 

tlck.ts.) 
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MEGA MI .. L10N.S 

ME6JJPlIER" 
'-- TIIIS+I.ttlf, . 

Play Megaplier' for only $' more per playboard and you could 
illCrease your non-grandlJackpot prize wmnmgs by 1., j, or 4 times. 

(Since 2005, 23 Texas players have become 
millionaires by playing Megaplier!) 

~RA;r~ 
with a $5 MEGA MIL LIONS' purchase 
R_ lid. coupon *' *ny T .... lot .. .., ,"ta",",. 

Co:lo4D> "* a.~ 5O'f£M8(JI t , 2001. /tal II 
1_'""", '*" CIIUt1 II II ,_ ... ...., ___ 

......... OonI_III-*'II.,~ 1l.\.llJpl ........ 

... , ""'~_~la,....I11 ... _~,.
IT_~_OroIr""(llf1'1U"'-"' __ ... _ ,...,Axo-.«f__ _bo _ 

__ .... II""a_ ... ~'" _~ 

CII ,·_mono. FV,V Fa'QtSIlY 
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Texas Lottery Player 
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